There is a lovely road that runs from Ixopo into the hills. These hills are grasscovered and rolling, and they are lovely beyond any singing of it. The road
climbs seven miles into them, to Carisbrooke; and from there, if there is no mist,
you look down on one of the fairest valleys of Africa. About you there is grass
and bracken and you may hear the forlorn crying of the titihoya, one of the birds
of the veld. Below you is the valley of Umzimkulu, on its journey from the
Drakensberg to the sea; and beyond and behind the river, great hill after great
hill; and beyond and behind them, the mountains of Ingeli and East Griqualand.
Alan Paton
Cry the Beloved Country
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KwaZulu-Natal continues
to dominate the domestic tourism market
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1. MEC’s message
It is with pleasure that I associate myself with the 2006/2007 Annual Report of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.
This report covers a year in which I believe significant progress has been made in laying the
groundwork for an effective harnessing of the strengths of the tourism industry in this province to
national and provincial objectives of economic growth, a process calculated to cascade especially to
the benefit and upliftment of those who have been historically disadvantaged.
KwaZulu-Natal continues to dominate the domestic tourism market. It is taking an increasing share of the international
one as well. The continued location of the Tourism Indaba in Durban provides a wonderful showcasing to the
international tourism industry of what KwaZulu-Natal has to offer.
Much credit for the achievements in tourism is also due to the efforts our tourism marketing organisation which, over
the years, has established benchmarks in marketing, information services, skills training, and tourism development.
The year also saw momentum being developed by a new Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) Board, which has, in my
opinion, built on past success to go from strength to strength.
TKZN has a formal legal and administrative relationship as a public entity with my portfolio of Arts, Culture and
Tourism. It is at the same time an indispensable partner in our drive to make reality, within the tourism sector in this
province, of the national objectives of broad-based black economic empowerment, ASGISA and JIPSA.
Such activity encompasses Tourism Mentorship programmes, where synergetic partnerships are formed between
emerging tourism entrepreneurs and established tourism operators; in skills training programmes and internships; and
monitoring of compliance with the National BEE Charter, where much still has to be achieved but at least within a
framework that has been established.
Much of this activity by TKZN and my department is focused, in the medium-term, on 2010, when the tourism
infrastructure of KwaZulu-Natal will (as in other provinces) be tested as never before by a huge influx of football
enthusiasts, here for the FIFA World Cup 2010™.
The challenge is not only to make sure our hotel, transport and security infrastructures are in place, but that the visitors
will be offered value for money and enjoyment to make them want to return again and again. It is also to draw into that
infrastructure meaningful numbers of the historically excluded so that they can experience the economic benefits. Also,
to aim, not so much for a statistical spike of prosperity from tourism, but for a new plateau. The new entrants need to
be still profitably in business years after the Soccer World Cup has passed.
These are all of the major challenges. However, I am confident that TKZN and the officials of my department have the
talent and commitment to meet them. The financial year that has passed has laid firm
foundations, I am convinced, that the province will continue making progress
towards its goal of becoming Africa’s leading tourism destination, and in the
process uplifting all its people.

Weziwe Thusi
MEC: Arts, Culture and Tourism
Province of KwaZulu-Natal
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To position the Province of KwaZulu-Natal
as Africa’s leading tourism destination
nationally and internationally
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2. General information
2.1 Vision
To position the Province of KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading tourism destination nationally and internationally.

2.2 Mission
To initiate, facilitate, coordinate and implement:
•

strategic tourism marketing; and

•

demand-driven tourism development programmes,

Which will grow tourism and thereby serving to achieve:
•

the transformation of the tourism sector within the province; and

•

the provision of economic benefits for all stakeholders and the province.

2.3 Objectives
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, 1996 (as amended) confers specific powers and responsibilities on the
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (Tourism KwaZulu-Natal). Taking cognisance of the different roles and
responsibilities of the many other institutions involved directly and indirectly in tourism in the province, and
taking into consideration its own funding constraints, the board has agreed that TKZN will focus on five key areas
of priority:
•

Pursuing economic growth within national and provincial tourism guidelines, by:
•

actively developing KwaZulu-Natal as a tourism destination;

•

marketing KwaZulu-Natal effectively to the target audiences;

•

constantly updating and maintaining its information and knowledge management system for the benefit
of tourists and stakeholders alike; and

•

championing quality assurance for all tourism products in the province, thereby ensuring that the
highest attainable standards are maintained;

•

Being the one-stop tourism information gateway for the province;

•

Ensuring that tourism in the province is developed responsibly;

•

Facilitating partnerships that achieve the tourism goals; and

•

Championing the transformation of the provincial tourism industry.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7
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2. General information

continued

2.4 Chairperson’s foreword
‘Living the vision’
During the period under review, we as the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority engaged our various
stakeholders as we embarked on the road to better shape and sharpen the implementation of the
province’s 2006 – 2011 tourism strategy.
At the forefront of this strategy is the vision to position the province of KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading tourism
destination, nationally and internationally.
We recognise that our key objective, as the Authority, is to ensure that tourism makes a significant contribution to the
province’s economic development, and as such our strategy emphasises the fundamental principles of cooperative
governance, partnerships, leveraging of resources and continued transformation of the sector.
We also acknowledge the challenges faced by the province in growing its tourism industry and thus emphasise the
provision of a quality tourism experience to visitors by focusing on training, skills development and quality assurance
issues.
It therefore gives me pleasure to present to you the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority’s 2006/7 Annual Report that
showcases some of the strides already made in fulfilling our mandate.
Over the past 10 years, the organisation has achieved a number of milestones. Again the period under review saw the
Authority being awarded the United Nations World Tourism Organisation (UNWTO) S’best accreditation, recognising it
for tourism best practice, only the sixth such destination management organisation (DMO) to receive such recognition
in the world, and certainly the first in Africa.
As part of our strategic marketing approach, we recognised that for us to run effective destination marketing
campaigns, it was important for these to be informed by appropriate consumer research to assist us in ensuring that
we respond to market needs. In this regard, we focused on greatly enhancing our tourism information systems, a move
that has earned us the prestigious UNWTO Ulysses Award for Innovation in Tourism Governance, beating some of the
world’s developed countries. This is again a first for Africa.
Winning this award is an effective way to benchmark the Authority against the world’s best DMO practices and we are
indeed proud that this international recognition is proof that we are well on the right track of delivering on our vision.
Furthermore, this elevates the image of KwaZulu-Natal, our tourism brand – the Zulu Kingdom, and indeed of
South Africa, internationally as a force to be reckoned with in terms of destination management.
6

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7

Zulu woman outside the Kraal, Shakaland

The year under review also saw us launch a fresher, more focused domestic marketing campaign called ‘The Zulu
Kingdom awaits’, which has been very well received by the market and whose success we continue to feel.
A lot of headway has also been made in terms of our international marketing campaigns. Strategic partnerships have
been formed with some of the world’s biggest and leading tour operating groups to ensure we increase the volumes of
international tourists to KwaZulu-Natal. Our tourism statistics can attest to this achievement.
This is a particularly important area of focus as the province prepares to host the world in 2010, and the completion in
2009 of the Dube Trade Port, which incorporates the King Shaka International Airport, will go a long way in boosting
our international marketing efforts.
Corporate governance remains pivotal to the Authority’s operation, complemented by the creation of an environment
conducive to people development and motivation. Creating an enabling institutional environment is thus critical for the
successful implementation of our tourism strategy. To this end we have streamlined some of the board committees and
created a new one in order to ensure a holistic approach to dealing with issues.
I would like to thank the newly appointed CEO, Mr Ndabo Khoza, his senior management team and the highly
committed team of employees who work tirelessly to ensure the delivery of our tourism strategy.
Giving leadership, motivation and guidance to the TKZN team are members of the board comprising captains of
various sectors who bring with them a wealth of expertise, ensuring the Authority effectively and efficiently delivers
on its mandate. I would like to thank all the members of the board for their individual
and collective contribution in this regard.
All these achievements would not be possible without the support of the provincial
government, and in particular the dedication by the MEC for Arts, Culture and
Tourism, Mrs Weziwe Thusi. Her commitment to place tourism at the top of the
government agenda has meant that there is now enhanced understanding of the
value and importance of tourism, its contribution to the growth of the province’s
economy as well as its potential to make an even greater contribution in the
future.
This commitment by government to the growth of tourism in KwaZuluNatal will continue to greatly assist us on the road to realising our
vision, and indeed ensure that tourism contributes to the creation
of a better life for the citizenry of our beautiful province that we
are all so proud to serve.

Dr Seshi Chonco
Chairperson
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7
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2. General information

continued

Dr Seshi Chonco
Chairperson

Yasmin Bacus
Board Member

Bunny Bhoola
Board Member

Stella Khumalo
Board Member

Sahlulele Luzipo
Board Member

Shakila Maharaj
Board Member

Themba Mthethwa
Board Member

Krish Naidoo
Chairperson:
Compensation Committee

Alan Vels
Chairperson:
Marketing Committee

There are a variety of five star hotels
along the KwaZulu-Natal coast
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Dr Thuthukile Goba
Chairperson:
Corporate Services Committee

Zamo Gwala
Board Member

Nonduduzo Kheswa
Board Member

Khulani Mkhize
Chairperson: Tourism
Development Committee

Busisiwe Mnganga
Chairperson:
Audit Committee

Sthembiso Mshengu
Board Member
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2. General information

continued

2.5 CEO’s report
When we set our focus areas for the year under review, we did so with determination to see the Zulu
Kingdom destination maintain its majority share of the domestic market and boosting its
international image for increased interest in, and visits to, the destination.
We believe that during the year under review our achievements went a long way towards not only meeting our
objectives, but at times exceeding them. In giving the foreword to the TKZN 2006/2007 annual report, the Chairperson
of the board has mentioned some of the highlights of this period that placed the Zulu Kingdom in the international
tourism spotlight.
Included amongst these achievements was the success of our bid to retain Southern Africa’s prime tourism trade show,
INDABA, in Durban for another three years from 2007 – 2009. Through teamwork between the Government of
KwaZulu-Natal, eThekwini Municipality, the Authority, Durban Africa and the Inkosi Albert Luthuli ICC, we were able to
retain INDABA in Durban and are determined to prove that Durban is in fact the obvious permanent home of INDABA.
Responding to market needs
In our efforts to build a strong tourism brand, in 2006 TKZN completed the Insight Activator brand development
process that was initiated in 2005, in conjunction with Unilever. The results were used to develop a consumer-centric
brand advertising campaign for the domestic market. This culminated in the launch of our exciting domestic marketing
campaign in August 2006.
This has paid dividends as the campaign improved the brand noting scores from 53% to 60% in less than six months
of the campaign’s launch. The campaign has also been effective in defending the Zulu Kingdom brand’s domestic
market leadership status, with our destination continuing to command a market share of 34%.
We complemented this by entering into various successful joint marketing agreements (JMAs) with leading tour
operators of which Thompson’s Tours was one, an activity that saw 141% growth in specific year-on-year tourism
arrivals.
A very focused brand communication strategy was implemented and it ensured year-round media presence for the
province, particularly focusing on our eight sub-destinations.
10
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Cheetah cubs at Phinda Game Reserve

International consumer marketing activities included participation in the South African Tourism’s Campaign (SADC), a
consumer promotion targeting Lesotho, Botswana, Mozambique and Swaziland. The main objective was to educate
consumers about South Africa, with TKZN focusing on the Zulu Kingdom.
We continued on efforts to develop strong relationships and cooperation with the trade. We launched our first-ever
trade support system comprising quarterly tourism growth forums and trade visits. These tools are aimed at improving
the organisation’s communication with trade and provide platforms to address any concerns and issues that might
hinder tourism growth in the province, while taking advantage of any opportunities to further grow arrivals into the
province. These have been very well received by our trade partners.
Realising the importance of working closely with provincial government in order to pursue tourism objectives, we
sought and obtained endorsements of our brand for a number of provincial events which have a tourism impact. This
led to the Zulu Kingdom being officially associated with the A1 Grand Prix 2007. Following from this, the process for
reviewing the brand positioning in line with the outputs of the insight activator is now possible and can be embarked
upon in the upcoming financial year.
Events around the province continue to yield positive tourism results. R1 billion in revenue was generated by a series
of landmark events that ranged from the Comrades Marathon to the prestigious advertising industry’s annual Loerie
Awards. Our events marketing strategy is therefore to extract tourism value and increase arrivals into the province,
consequently our collaboration and association.
Gearing up for 2010
TKZN has its eye firmly set on 2010 and plans to create brand awareness for the Zulu
Kingdom as a destination during the World Cup in South Africa. We set the ball rolling
when we promoted the province during the 2006 World Cup in Hamburg, Germany.
This was done to create brand awareness for the Zulu Kingdom as a destination ahead
of 2010, and to remind prospective travellers of the province’s long-haul attractions.
The activation included an interactive experience of a Zulu weaver at work creating a
typical product at our stand, a meet-and-greet autographing session by South African
footballer Delron Buckley who plays in Germany.
The Zulu Kingdom tent drew a lot of interest and crafters sold out their wares,
including those made during the activation, while an estimated 6 000 brochures
written in German were distributed.
We have developed a focused tourism plan for 2010 and the
implementations of various elements of this plan have already begun.
We understand that the hosting of the World Cup soccer games in
Durban presents many tourism opportunities and benefits for the
province. As such, we participated in SOCCEREX held in Dubai
as part of the provincial team comprising various government
departments and public entities. This was to position the
province as part of our 2010 activation programmes.
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7
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2. General information

continued

2.5 CEO’s report continued
Marketing from an informed point of view
As part of our strategic approach to marketing our destination, we conduct economic impact assessments of several
events, conventions and exhibitions. The results of these studies are utilised to further enhance our marketing drives
and programmes.
We continued to monitor the organisation’s brand health conducted in monthly panel surveys with leading tourism
stakeholders and a number of other surveys to measure the image of TKZN in the trade. In addition, a series of
questions were placed on the AC Nielson Omnibus survey to test the level of ‘brand conversion’ of South Africans with
respect to the Zulu Kingdom and its sub-destinations.
It’s all in the tourism service rendered
Given the value of word-of-mouth destination marketing by tourists, TKZN placed a premium on improving visitor
experiences in the Zulu Kingdom through encouraging greater service excellence. This was done by enhancing the
incentive programme, the Service Excellence Campaign that showcases tourism best practice and encourages other
tourism players to improve service delivery.
TKZN subscribes to the view that excellent service, matched by an equally welcoming environment, will motivate
happy tourists to recommend the destination to friends, family and colleagues once back home, and also results in
repeat visits which are critical in the diversifying of product offerings.
To ensure the environment is as good as the service rendered, TKZN conducted a series of community road shows to
encourage host communities to give tourists a warm welcome. We also implemented our Tourism Ambassador
Programme in which formerly unemployed youths were trained and positioned at popular attractions in and around
Durban to assist tourists with information during major events at the ICC and during the festive season.
Piloted at INDABA 2005, the tourism ambassador programme represents a tangible means of enhancing the visitor
experience. Plans are afoot to roll the project out to the rest of the province, particularly the popular tourist areas.
Spreading the good news
We continued to identify opportunities to enhance the Zulu Kingdom brand and present a positive image of the
province as tourism destination.
An example was the VIP hosting programme for the A1 Grand Prix drivers in the Elephant Coast, which was
successfully activated through destination endorsement. In addition, well-known personalities in the arts as well as
international media from core and emerging markets were hosted.
Providing them with first-hand information on the unique tourism offerings of the Zulu Kingdom gave credibility to the
coverage on the destination.
12
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Sodwana Bay is situated on the North Coast within Isimangaliso,
the Greater St Lucia Wetland Park, and is renowned for its sport
fishing, scuba diving and snorkelling

Ensuring BEE success in tourism
TKZN’s BEE Skills Development and Advisory Services saw the organisation making critical interventions towards
ensuring that BEE businesses start shifting towards the mainstream of tourism.
We continued to work closely with the Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism (DACT) on the BEE Mentorship
Programme, a project run with the active participation of some of the industry’s big businesses.
Some of the ‘mentees’ have already started making tourism strides, a case in point being Imvubu Guest House that was
the provincial winner in South African Tourism’s Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award (ETEYA).
Several other important platforms were identified for BEE support, with a number of businesses taken to various
tourism shows including the World Travel Market (WTM) in London.
In an effort to ensure a very focused transformation intervention, we hosted the province’s first tourism BEE summit.
This culminated in four focus areas of intervention, which we are currently addressing.
Route development
The development of railway tourism routes continues to be an area of focus, with the railway tourism experience from
Creighton to Underberg being the most prominent route that is under discussion with Spoornet. TKZN has also
assisted in formulating business and implementation plans for the KwaZulu-Natal Express Route and the Sisonke
Express, which if successful will link Pietermaritzburg with Creighton and Underberg.
The development of anchor tourism nodes along the Zulu Heritage and Cultural Route are progressing well, as well as
the Isibhubhu project at the Enyokeni Royal Palace, near Nongoma.
Three township routes to the south, north and west of Durban’s central business district (CBD) have been identified
and assessed for potential development.
Ensuring good corporate governance
Our work to market the province would not be effective without equally creating an environment which enables effective
delivery. In this regard, the year under review saw ongoing implementation of enhanced organisational policies to
ensure that all the activities of the organisation are aligned to the tourism strategy as well as comply with our founding
legislation and the Public Finance Management Act.
A dedicated team
Our appreciation goes to the TKZN team behind the implementation of the 2006/7 action plan, who individually and
collectively remain true ambassadors of the Zulu Kingdom and go out of their way to ensure that the destination takes
its rightful place on the domestic and international tourism platform.
We would also like to extend our gratitude to our chairperson and all the members of the board for their unwavering
leadership and to our MEC, Mrs Weziwe Thusi, for giving us the direction and support that help achieve more each year.
We hope the information provided here assists you in gaining further insight into the work of TKZN and that you will
identify an area of support that will help drive even more tourist numbers to the majestic Zulu Kingdom.

Ndabo Khoza
CEO
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7
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2. General information

continued

Ndabo Khoza
Chief Executive Officer

James Hlongwa
General Manager:
Tourism Development

Phindile Makwakwa
General Manager:
PR and Communications

Nomasonto Ndlovu
General Manager:
Marketing

Wellington Ngcobo
General Manager:
Corporate Services

James Seymour
General Manager:
Tourism Information Services

Zulu dancing is a must for any visitor to the Zulu Kingdom,
be thrilled by the rhythm of the drums and the amazing energy
of the traditional dances
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To build a strong,
integrated, KwaZulu-Natal tourism brand
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3. Programme performance
3.1 Marketing
3.1.1

Objectives
• To build a strong, integrated KwaZulu-Natal tourism brand;
• To defend KwaZulu-Natal’s domestic market share;
• To grow international arrivals;
• In partnership with Durban Africa and ICC, to grow KwaZulu-Natal’s business tourism;
• To create brand alignment and synergy with sub-brands; and
• To strengthen trade relations with trade partners.

3.1.2

Key performance areas
• Brand and leisure marketing;
• International marketing;
• Trade marketing;
• Business tourism (BT);
• Events marketing;
• 2010 Soccer World Cup;
• Indaba; and
• Group tourism support.

3.1.3

General manager’s overview
To promote the destination domestically and internationally, several promotional tools were developed,
including the travel, accommodation and adventure guides.
Business tourism material was also developed to promote the province as a business tourism
destination. This took the form of a meeting planner and incentive guide that was developed in
collaboration with the business tourism trade in the province. These were used extensively at all trade
workshops and exhibitions, both domestically and internationally.
To enhance promotional efforts and in line with certain market demands, a German version of the travel
guide and Mandarin brochures were also produced to assist marketing efforts in Germany and China.
Moreover, we ensured that consistent media presence and continuous print advertising in the in-flight
magazines Sawubona and Wildside, as well as Getaway magazine was achieved throughout the year by
profiling all eight destinations during their low seasons.
To complement our in-flight print advertising, TKZN produced a KwaZulu-Natal-themed series flighted
aboard SAA international aircrafts. This was done in collaboration with Durban Africa and the Durban
ICC.
In addition, we secured a full programme for the Sho’t Left campaign where KwaZulu-Natal was
featured in a full episode on SABC 2, a South African Tourism (SAT) initiative that aims to encourage
South Africans to travel. The campaign elements included radio, SMS and gig guides promoting events
in South Africa. The campaign culminated with consumers winning a trip to experience the province.
We participated in a number of domestic and international trade shows and workshops, including The
Cape Outdoor, the World Travel Market (WTM) exhibition in London in November 2006, and ITB Berlin
in March 2007. Six SMMEs were taken to the domestic shows to exhibit on the KwaZulu-Natal stand as
part of a continuous process to assist them in developing exhibiting skills and further prepare them for
bigger tourism shows like Tourism Indaba.
TKZN was invited to participate in the eLan Group’s international marketing campaign in the UK during
November 2006, and participated in the property exhibition, presenting the destination to more than
200 invited guests. TKZN also provided prizes that were awarded during the various events.
The campaign focused on selling the eLan’s Blythedale Coastal Resort development together with the
destination, and also enticing prospective buyers to travel to KwaZulu-Natal before making their decision.
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
3.1.3

General manager’s overview continued
The concept of eLan’s Blythedale development is that of a beach resort hotel that also offers coastal, forest and
golfing options. The model was well received by prospective buyers in support of the demand by a large tourist
market that desires a beach resort facility.
This need was also identified in our Insight Activator research in 2005 and was followed up by a media
familiarisation trip in April 2007.
Other marketing activities during the year under review included selected print advertising in the United
Kingdom and Germany, executed by TKZN’s trade representatives. Further, our representatives negotiated a
number of JMAs in the marketplace, which included SAA and Travelbag, Kuoni, Thomas Cook in the UK,
Schumann Reisen and TUI in Germany.
Germany and the UK remain TKZN’s core source markets, and it is important to ensure an enhanced and continuous
presence in these markets, particularly as arrivals from these countries have seen minimal increases over the
past few years. To this end, the trade representatives’ contracts were both renewed in the UK and Germany.
TKZN understands the importance of ‘word-of-mouth’ as a critical marketing channel in the tourism industry.
To this end, it is important that a focused programme that ensures key influential guests like trade and media
can experience the province and be in a position to talk positively about it within their circles.
TKZN therefore continued to implement its hosting programme in an effort to educate the trade and media about
the province. This process saw several groups being hosted by TKZN during the period under review, including
30 groups representing trade and media from around the world, 40 UK trade personnel before Indaba 2006, and
an US-based YMCA Leadership group.
In 2005 TKZN set up a new unit within the organisation to promote KwaZulu-Natal as a business tourism
destination. It was key that in 2006, we continued with the momentum built up in the previous year, in order for
the industry to understand TKZN’s commitment to the sector and to growing awareness of KwaZulu-Natal as a
business tourism destination.
In a bid to profile the province as a business tourism destination, we participated in a number of international
shows, including the IT&ME, an incentive show in Chicago, in September 2006.
Given KZN’s growth as a business tourism destination, TKZN understands the importance of brand visibility
within the business tourism networks. This is especially true of the associations at a time when new
relationships are being built.
In a bid to better understand how this sector operates, we attended the 45th International Congress and
Convention Association’s (ICCA) Congress and Exhibition, incorporating the ICCA Assembly in Rhodes,
Greece, from 28 October to 1 November 2006.
Here we learnt more about international best practice pertaining to Convention Visitor Bureaux (CVB), and
opportunities presented by active participation in associations like the ICCA.
TKZN continued to work together with the South Coast to develop the Sardine Run into a hallmark event for the
province, launched in 2007. This saw the Sardine Run transformed into the ‘Sardine Festival’ with a number of
integrated events that were nevertheless independent of the actual sardine migration.
To this end, the finalisation of an events evaluation framework was achieved. In essence, it saw the drafting of
two key documents – an agreement between the Ugu district municipality and TKZN, and an event participation
agreement between Ugu and all event organisers during the Sardine Run.
This culminated in a workshop between Ugu and TKZN in November 2006 where the full concept was
workshopped, including the setting up of a local organising committee. TKZN and Ugu also signed a letter of
agreement to facilitate the project.
In line with endeavours to improve the quality of current and future events hosted in the province, an events
organisers workshop was successfully staged for the first time with more that 30 events organisers
participating.
Positive feedback suggests a real need for ongoing events organisers workshops and we will explore the
possibility of conducting at least two a year in support of its BEE and SMME development programmes.
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3.1 Marketing continued
3.1.4

Performance highlights
Marketing strategy and brand evolution
•

Completion of brand insight activator process; and

•

Political stakeholders embrace Zulu Kingdom brand.

Domestic and international marketing
•

New advertising campaign launched on 1 August 2006;

•

Brand noting increased from 53% to 60% in less than six months after the campaign launch;

•

KwaZulu-Natal leads the domestic market with market share at 32%;

•

Brand communication strategy ensures all-year-round media presence;

•

New travel, accommodation, adventure and destination brochures were printed;

•

A German and Mandarin version of the travel guide produced;

•

KwaZulu-Natal featured in a full programme for the Sho’t Left campaign on SABC 2; and

•

KwaZulu-Natal promoted at Soccer World Cup in 2006 in Germany and Soccerex Dubai to create brand
awareness towards 2010.

Trade marketing and media hosting programme
•

An innovative trade support system is established to deliver practical added value for the trade partners
and enhance trade relationships; and

•

About 30 international groups representing trade and media were hosted.

Joint marketing initiatives and cooperative marketing
•

Strategic joint marketing agreements with Bunson Tours and Thompson Tours;

•

JMA with Thompsons Tours sees 141% increase in SADC/domestic arrivals revenues; and

•

Continued relationship with the Sharks and the ongoing TV programme ‘Shark Bite’.

Shows and exhibitions
•

TKZN/Durban partnership clinches Indaba for another three years; and

•

Various TKZN exhibition stands win awards for best stand, with Indaba stand winning Gold.

Business tourism and events
•

Business tourism is trained on business tourism by a BT specialist;

•

Good coverage in Travel Mole, Australia and New Zealand travel and tourism industry eNewsletter
distributed to over 16 000 industry professionals;

•

Development of an events policy;

•

Stronger partnership between TKZN and Ugu district municipality and increased support of the
development of the Sardine Festival; and

•

Key events generate about R1 billion for the KwaZulu-Natal economy.
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Bottlenose
dolphins can be
found frolicking
in schools of up
to 200 on the
North Coast

C;lose to St Lucia is the Crocodile
Centre that features a breeding
programme for two endangered African
species: the dwarf and long-snout
crocodile

Sunrise over
St Lucia Lake on
the North Coast
of KwaZulu-Natal
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3.1 Marketing continued
DOMESTIC MARKETING – Brand marketing (Leisure)
Goal

Key performance
indicator

Target

Performance results

To create
a strong
destination
brand.

Revised brand
positioning in line
with Insight
Activation and
new positioning.

Level of clarity
regarding KZN’s
USP.

Insight activator process was completed
which led to the new advertising campaign
‘The Spirit of Summer’ that was launched in
August 2006 and improved brand noting
from 53% to 60%.

To defend
domestic
market share
to increase
share of the
holiday market.

Brand loyalty
campaign,
joint marketing
agreements,
brand activation
campaign.

Level of market
share maintenance.
Number of JMAs
implemented.
Level of increase
in holiday market.

TKZN has maintained market leadership in the
domestic market. Two domestic JMAs were
implemented, Thompsons Tours and Pumba
Tours. Launched domestic advertising
campaign dubbed ‘It awaits’, comprising two
TV commercials of 30 and 60 seconds, radio,
print and Outdoor.

To improve
brand
awareness and
brand health.

New advertising
campaign
addressing
seasonality of all
eight destinations.

Increased brand
awareness.

Improvement of brand health monitor scores
achieved. Brand noting increased from 35%
to 60%.

CRM
programme.

Positive improvement
on key brand
health attributes.
Extent of CRM
database usage.

The CRM programme was limited to
consumer newsletters using databases
from events and domestic shows.

To educate
consumers about
the province
and its various
experiences.

Participate at
key domestic
shows.

Participate in at least
one consumer show
in Gauteng and
Western Cape.

Participated in the following consumer shows
and promotions: Cape Getaway Show,
Gauteng Outdoor Adventure show,
Gauteng DSTV Getaway Show and
Outdoor Experience in Bien Donne in
Franschhoek.

To ensure brand
alignment
between national,
provincial and
sub-brands.

Development of
innovative
branded
tools/collateral.

Production of
relevant
promotional material
and quality thereof.

2006/7 travel guide, accommodation brochure,
adventure guide, KZN branded maps,
meetings, planners and incentive guides were
produced.
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
DOMESTIC MARKETING – Brand marketing (Leisure) continued
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

Performance results

Destination
awareness
campaigns as
per annual
calendar.

Level of
implementation
of MOUs.

TKZN facilitated and participated in four consumer
shows, to which all eight destinations were invited.

Destination MOU
implementation.

Greater cooperation
between destinations
and TKZN.

Domestic promotion was embarked on with
East Coast Radio to promote destinations.

Regular
communication
of brand strategy
to destinations at
Provincial Tourism
Forum.

Support to four destinations towards
production of their brochures. Regular feedback
was also achieved at provincial tourism fora.

To generate
awareness of
KZN as an
all-year-round
destination.

Provide
destination
marketing
support.

Two destinations (Elephant Coast and Zululand)
on SuperSport 2 programme Topcar, in which
Topcar test-drove the new Toyota RAV4 in the region,
and they used the TV programme to profile the
DStv Gauteng Outdoor Show held in June 2006.

To raise the
KZN profile
by creating a
‘big brand feel’.

Development
and roll-out of
brand toolkit.

Level of compliance
by destinations with
branding guidelines
and brand toolkit.

A branding guidelines manual was drafted, but still
awaiting approval and dissemination to destinations.

All-year-round
media presence –
media plan.

Level of
implementation
of success in
approved media
plan.

Brand media implementation plan included TV,
radio, radio promotion via focused Easter weekend
campaign on ECR, print advertising in Sawubona,
Wildside (in-flight) and Getaway magazine was
achieved throughout the year profiling all eight
destinations.

Joint promotions
with other strong/
big brands eg.
MTN/Vodacom.

Implementation of at
least one promotion
with another strong
brand.

This was achieved by co-promoting with Toyota
due to budget limitations.
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3.1 Marketing continued
INTERNATIONAL MARKETING – Destination brand marketing
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To improve
brand awareness
in key source
markets.

International
consumer shows,
aligned to SAT.

Maintain or grow
share in core
markets.

To complement our in-flight print advertising,
TKZN – produced SAA KZN series flighted on SAA
international, done in collaboration with Durban
Africa and Durban ICC

Participation in
key international
shows aligned with
SAT’s strategy.

Participation at ‘The weekend of total South African
experiences’ activation in Nairobi, Kenya in March
2007, comprising a media briefing, an exhibition,
a fashion show and mini-golfing activity.

To profile the
destination
internationally.

Performance results

Participation at the Nan Fei 2 Mobile roadshow
which was a mobile consumer exhibition in China.
To convert
business
tourists to
leisure tourists.

CRM programme
implementation
using conference
delegate database.

Level of database
usage.
Level of interest in
the destination
post conference
in terms of number
of enquiries.

Databases have been obtained from all events
that TKZN participated in and these have been
communication to the databases has been limited
to consumer newsletters due to budget limitations.

To improve brand
image in core
markets.

PR/leverage
off other strong
brands (see
PR section).

Extent of positive
PR and media
coverage in core
markets.

Selected print advertising in UK and Germany,
executed by TKZN’s trade representative, was
implemented including a JMA with SAA and
Travelbag, Kuoni, Thomas Cook in the UK,
Schumann Reisen and TUI in Germany.

The famous battle of Blood River
was fought on 16 December 1838,
and the Boers under Andries Pretorius
defeated Dingane's Zulu army.
A replica of the Boer laager can be found
on the site, as well as a memorial
(Ncome Museum) to the Zulu impi
who fought bravely during this battle

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7

23

Impala at the Tala
Game Reserve in
the Midlands

Mlambonja River with
Rhino Peak which stands
at 3 051 m in the
southern Drakensberg
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3.1 Marketing continued
DOMESTIC MARKETING – Trade
Key performance
indicator

Goal

Target

Performance results

To improve
trade relations
with key trade
partners.

Regular
communication
and liaison with
key trade
partners.

Success in
establishing and
maintaining
relationships with
travel trade in
respective
markets.

TKZN launched a trade support system
comprising quarterly tourism growth
forums and trade visits. The launch took
place on 2 March 2007 and was attended by
about 40 KZN trade members, who were each
given a trade presenter operational calendar
and databases from the previous trade shows
and international exhibitions. This was
received positively and has improved TKZN’s
relationship with local trade.

To establish
profitabilitydriven
relationships
to increase
arrivals.

Structured trade
support system,
joint marketing
agreements and
cooperative
initiatives.

Level of success
in managing and
sustaining
improved trade
relations in key
markets.

TKZN finalised a joint marketing agreement
with Bunson Tours, the biggest outbound
tour operator in Kenya, which was as a
result of the East Africa trade workshops
held in July, organised by SAT.
The JMA activities include selected print
advertising, leaflets, posters and Zulu
Kingdom packages.

To create
demand for
KZN
domestically.

Trade e-marketing
programme:
roll-out of TRM
programme for
trade aligned to
SAT’s trade
programmes.

Joint marketing
agreements with
selected local and
international
tour operators
with a view to
stimulate increased
domestic and regional
tourist arrivals into
the province.

Successful JMAs implemented with
Thompsons Tours and Pumba Tours.

The Sho’t Left
Campaign.

Ongoing Sho’t Left packages were negotiated
for TKZN’s network of websites.

Domestic trade
familiarisation
trips.

TKZN together with Thompsons hosted
a trade familiarisation trip and a trade
workshop. Trade was hosted in KZN
to enable them to better sell the province.

Hippos wallow in St Lucia Lake, part of
Isimangaliso, (the Greater St Lucia Wetland
Park) declared a World Heritage Site in 1999
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
DOMESTIC MARKETING – Trade continued
Key performance
indicator

Goal

Target

Performance results

To improve
trade awareness
of KZN as a
destination.

Branded trade
advertising
campaign and
trade workshop
participation.

Level of success
in providing
marketing and
sales platform
domestically and
increased arrivals
from key markets.

TKZN achieved advertisement in different trade
publications eg. Tourism Update, Explore SA
and GSA.

To better understand
domestic
and KZN trade
for maximum
benefits.

Trade brochure
listings (trade
brochures and
merchandising).

Participation on at
least one show
per core market
(GP, CT).

To improve destinations awareness, TKZN
participated in the following domestic shows in
the core markets: ABSA Soweto Festival, Cape Town
Outdoor, Gauteng Outdoor and DStv.

SMME trade
marketing
support
provision.

Contribution
towards tourism
industry
transformation
and development.

Understanding of
SMME’s tactical
and strategic
participation in
selective trade and
consumer shows.

Selected SMMEs were given the opportunity to
participate in the domestic shows, namely, the
Rand Easter Show and the ABSA Soweto Show
in an attempt to give them an opportunity of
promoting their wares at shows to prepare them for
bigger shows like Indaba.

Thousands of trails are marked across
the Drakensberg from short ambles to
strenuous day and longer hikes
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3.1 Marketing continued
INTERNATIONAL MARKETING – Trade
Key performance
indicator

Goal

Target

To grow arrivals
from UK and
Germany,
KZN’s key
source markets.

Maintain market
representation
via representatives
(Ethos/Tourlink) in
UK and Germany
and explore
Africa/US market
representation.
Joint marketing
agreements,
cooperative
initiatives.

Improved and
increase
awareness of KZN
as a destination in
our core markets
internationally.

The contracts with the international representatives in
Germany and UK were extended in order to ensure
continuity and focus in our core markets.

Improved trade
relations with the
key trade and tour
operators.

Improved trade relations ongoing.

To increase
trade
awareness of
KZN as a
destination.

E-marketing
roll-out of TRM
programme for
trade aligned to
SAT’s trade
programmes.

Implementation of
at least one JMA
per key market.

Participated in ASA trade workshops, Germany
in September 2006, represented by Tourlink,
at which a 15-minute presentation on the
destination was made to the German trade.

To create
demand for
KZN in core,
tactical markets
in line with SAT.

Conduct trade
workshops
aligned to SAT.

Maintain/grow
market share in
UK and Germany.

Various JMAs signed with tour operators in
Germany and UK, Thomas Cook JMA,
Schumann Reissen, TUI.

To enhance product
destination
awareness.

Germany, UK
Netherlands
Mauritius.

Level of participation
in these workshops.

The UK and German markets have remained largely
static with no real growth having been realised.

Trade
exhibitions
WTM, ITB, Kenya.
Selective trade
advertising
campaign.

Level of participation
in these trade
exhibitions.
Level of trade
advertising
achieved.

Participation at the following shows and trade
workshops was achieved and good leads and
relationships established:
• The second InCountry Familiarisation, in Goa.
This event educates the high-profile Indian trade
on destination SA, and is attended by all the
provinces and the trade from South Africa.
• India Three Cities workshop (Mumbai, Chennai and
New Delhi) from 5 – 9 February 2007.
• East Africa Trade Workshop, 24 – 29 July 2008
in Uganda, Kenya and Tanzania, during which over
100 travel trade were trained on the province.
• World Travel Market (WTM) exhibition in London
from 6 – 9 November 2006.
• SAT-facilitated pre-WTM provincial trade
workshops that took place in Birmingham,
London and Manchester, 30 October – 2 Nov 2006.
Pre-ITB trade workshop in Frankfurt, organised by
SAT, prior to show in Berlin 2006.

To establish
profitabilitydriven
relationships
to grow arrivals.

Performance results
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
BUSINESS TOURISM
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To increase
awareness of
KZN as a
business tourism
destination.

Advertising
KZN as a
destination for
meetings and
business events.

Increased
awareness about
the province as a
tourism business
destination.

To promote KZN
internationally
as a business
tourism
destination.

Promotional
campaign
targeting
associations
in South Africa.

Level of success
in raising
awareness of KZN
as a MICE
destination.

To attract
conferences
and meetings to
the province.

Promote bidding
for conferences
and business
events by
associations and
meeting planners.

Number of
associations and
trade workshops
mobilised.

TKZN hosted breakfast for approximately
40 international MICE buyers, providing an
additional platform for promoting the
province.

To develop
and grow
the incentive
tourism market
for KZN.

Bid support for
associations and
other institutions,
eg. tertiary
education
institutions.

Number of bids
supported.

Coordinated bid support letters for the
following bids:
• International Industrial Relations Association
African Regional Congress 2015.
• World Confederation for Physical Therapy
International Congress.
• Hosted international President,
Vice-President and Secretary General for
International Society of Radiographers
conference in 2008 that will attract
between 1 000 – 1 500 delegates.
• SAACI conference in August attracted a
number of national business tourism
products. TKZN helped to plan the event.
• SA Orthopaedic Congress at the ICC.
• Asian Africa Conference organised by DFA
which attracted 72 countries.
• President’s Emergency Plan for Aids Relief
that was organised by the US Government,
an event which attracted 1 000 delegates
from different countries.
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Level of support
extended to
associations.

Performance results
In an effort to profile KZN as a business
tourism destination, TKZN participated
at the following international shows:
• IT&ME, an incentive show, Chicago, in
September 2006.
• EIBTM, Barcelona, in November 2006, that
attracted incentive buyers from European
destination.
• Meetings Africa, Johannesburg, in February
and March 2007. The exhibition started with
a South African Tourism workshop where
five provinces including KZN presented
business tourism offerings to about 60
international Meetings Africa-hosted buyers.

Sleek zebra, herds
of wildebeest and
many varieties of
antelope can be
seen at the Tala
private reserve,
45 minutes from
Durban

Scuba diving on the South Coast at Aliwal Shoal,
which attracts a wide variety of fish and many
ragged-tooth sharks, is a safe, popular and aweinspiring underwater adventure

To gain an insight into the Zulus’ former
traditional way of life, one should visit the
open-air museum ‘Shakaland’ near Eshowe
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
BUSINESS TOURISM continued
Goal

Target

To develop
and grow the
incentive
tourism market
for KZN.

Conference
promotion
support in
conjunction with
ICC, conference
venues and
Durban tourism
to boost delegate
numbers for
secured conferences.
Business tourism
exhibitions
participation with
Durban tourism:
• Meetings Africa
• IME
• EIBTM.

Key performance
indicator

Support the following delegate-boosting missions:
• Pig Vets Conference in Copenhagen that is due to
take place in Durban in 2008.
• Veterinary Epidemiology Association delegate
boosting in Cairns.
TKZN participated at the following business
Tourism shows:
• Meetings Africa
• IT&ME
• EIBTM
• IMEX Frankfurt – TKZN was represented by
Tourlink at this show.

Level of participation
in relevant business
tourism exhibitions.

TKZN hosted three buyers on Durban/Elephant
Coast Tour. Products visited were Suncoast Hotel,
Hotel Izulu, Shakaland, Thanda and Phinda.

Number of leads
per trade show
attended.

TKZN also hosted 24 USA YMCA Leadership
delegates on a tour to Hluhluwe. The objective
was to strengthen the relationship between YMCA
and TKZN and to encourage more meetings and
conferences to the province.

Media and trade
Number of media
familiarisation tours. familiarisation
tours and trade
familiarisation
tours supported.
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Performance results

Hosted A1 Grand Prix drivers during the event.
TKZN hosted a journalist from Events magazine,
an international magazine that reports on meetings,
incentives, congresses and exhibitions, and is
circulated in Germany, Austria, Switzerland and the
Benelux countries. Target groups are corporate
decision-makers, travel agencies with corporate
services, directors, international associations, and
event project managers.

3.1 Marketing continued
BUSINESS TOURISM continued
Goal

Target

To develop
and grow
the incentive
tourism market
in KZN.

Trade
workshops.

Select
advertising
in trade
publications
and incentive
end-user
publications.

Key performance
indicator

Performance results
TKZN participated in the workshops that were
organised by SAT. The objective was to educate
US trade about South Africa. SAT used these
workshops as a platform to launch business tourism
in the following cities:
• New York – 247 attendees
• Los Angeles – 172 attendees
• San Francisco – 133 attendees
• Tampa – 58 attendees
• Boca Raton – 120 attendees
• Atlanta – 202 attendees
• Washington DC – 176 attendees
• Chicago – 129 attendees
• Dallas

Number of
workshops/sales
calls.

Adverts were placed in the following publications:
• Business Destinations – UK
• Congress Today and Incentive Travel – Italy
• Conference Venues Southern Africa.
The province also received good coverage in
Travel Mode, an Australia and New Zealand travel
and tourism industry newsletter. It is distributed to
over 16 000 industry professionals in Australia/New
Zealand. It is also distributed to more than 500 000
professionals in UK/International and US editions.

Level of incentive
travel market
advertising
achieved.

KZN booked an eight-page special on KwaZuluNatal Business Tourism offerings in the Events
magazine that was distributed at IMEX in
Frankfurt, Germany.

Dreams of fame and fortune lured hundreds
of wide-eyed prospectors to Kranskop in the
Midlands' far northeast during the 1860s.
The 'gold in them hills' was pyrites and everyone
left none the richer. To-date 17 different
minerals have been discovered and vegetation in
the valley ranges from tropical rain forest to
acacia savannah within a few footsteps
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
BUSINESS TOURISM continued
Key performance
indicator

Goal

Target

To exploit key
events to drive
tourist volume.

Provide technical
and financial
support to the
following events:
• Dusi Canoeing,
Pietermaritzburg
/Durban;
• Midmar Mile,
Midlands;
• Splashy Fen,
Drakensberg;
• Pilsner Urquell
Celebrity Golf,
Drakensberg;
• Comrades
Marathon,
Pietermaritzburg
/Durban;
• Sardine Run,
South Coast;
• Reed Dance,
Zululand;
• Zululand Festival,
Zululand;
• King Shaka
Celebration.

To raise the
profile and build
the image of
KZN as
destination.
To use events
to address
seasonality,
length of stay
and geographic
spread.
Use events
to increase
awareness
of KZN as a
‘must visit’
destination.

Launch at least
one hallmark
event –
Sardine Run in
June/July.

Improved
economic impact.
Level of positive
media exposure
generated.
Increased
awareness
of the destination.

Performance results
TKZN continued to use events to promote the
province and the following events were supported
in 2006/7
• Dusi Canoeing: Pietermaritzburg/Durban,
attracted 2 000 participants, 3 000 support crew
and 9 000 spectators including media.
• Pilsner Urquell Supersport Golf Shoot Out
Celebrity Golf: Drakensberg, attracted over 200
SA sport celebrities from various sporting codes.
• Splashy Fen: Drakensberg – 8 000 guests, media
and artists.
• Comrades Marathon: Pietermaritzburg/Durban, 12 000
entries with 428 international participants.
• Reed Dance: Zululand, 15 000 including maidens,
media and spectators.
• Amashovashova: Pietermaritzburg/Durban –
8 010 participants
• Swartkop Challenge: Battlefields.
• The Loerie Awards: Margate, 2 000 delegates
from the advertising industry.
• A1 Grand Prix: Durban.
• Zululand International Triathlon Championships –
about 600 athletes participated and the event
received live TV and internet coverage.
• MTN Jazz Festival.

This narrow strip of land approximately
200 kilometres long and just 70 kilometres wide
bounded by the Ubombo Mountains, Indian Ocean and
the Umfolozi River to St. Lucia Estuary is home
to an incredible 21 different eco-systems
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3.1 Marketing continued
BUSINESS TOURISM continued
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To encourage trade
to package KZN
events.

Ground Logistics
Support:

Level of increased
packages for events.

Performance results
Trade has been encouraged to submit packages to TKZN
for publication on the website.

• Durban July;
• Durban Fashion
Week;

TKZN continued to work together with South Coast to
develop the Sardine Run into a hallmark event, for launch
in 2007. The umbrella concept moves the Sardine Run to
the ‘Sardine Festival’ that features integrated and related
events.

• MTN Jazz Festival,
Durban;
• Durban A1 Grand
Prix;
• World Rally
Championships;
• Loerie Awards,
South Coast.
To educate events
organisers on the
impact of events on
destination image.

To provide support
to events organisers.

Staging events
organisers best
practice session/
conference.

Level of
improvement in
Durban and KZN
events management.

An events organisers workshop was successfully staged
for the first time with more than 30 participants. TKZN
received positive feedback on the workshop with requests
to host these on an ongoing basis. TKZN will explore
opportunities of conducting these at least twice a year as
part of our BEE and SMME development programme.
TKZN supported the Loerie Awards in Margate in
September as part of its group tourism strategy.
The event attracted 2 000 delegates.
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Internationally
recognised as the
world’s greatest
ultra-marathon, the
89 kilometre long
Comrades is a
South African
institution, known
for the camaraderie
it fosters among
tens of thousands
of participants
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3.1 Marketing continued
2010 SOCCER WORLD CUP
Goal

Target

Exploit the Soccer
World Cup 2006 to
create destination
awareness.

Hamburg activation:
marketing of the
Zulu Kingdom in
Hamburg during the
2006 Soccer World
Cup.

Key performance
indicator

Performance results

Increased awareness TKZN promoted KZN during the 2006 Soccer
of KZN.
World Cup in Hamburg, Germany, to create brand
awareness for the Zulu Kingdom during the
World Cup in South Africa, and also to appeal to
travellers looking at long-haul destinations. The
activation included an interactive experience of a
Zulu weaver at work at the KZN stand, and a
meet-and-greet session with SA footballer Delron
Buckley who plays in Germany.
The Zulu Kingdom tent was popular and crafters
sold all their wares, including those that were
produced during the activation. About 6 000 KZN
German travel guides and maps were distributed
during the World Cup period.
TKZN also participated at the Soccerex in Dubai,
with the provincial government.

KwaZulu-Natal is the home of a programme
to breed disease-free buffalo and release
them into the wild to preserve the species

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7

35

3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
INDABA
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To use the Indaba
platform to grow
arrivals from core
markets.

Superfam execution
JMAs with key tour
operators.

Increased
international
participation.

To exploit Indaba to
drive volumes into
KZN.

Joint marketing
agreements.

Improved economic
impact.

Hosting
programme
educationals.

Quality of trade for
Superfam.

Other highlights at Indaba included:

Level of success in
negotiating joint
marketing
agreements.

• Increased brand awareness via event participation, eg.
Networking Buyers Function, Sibaya Gold Club Party,
Superfam and Indaba Daily advertising.

To enhance
product/destination
awareness.

PR leverage plan.

To raise profile and
build image of KZN
destination.

Number of pre- and
post-tours.

Performance results
2006 saw the Durban/KZN bid partnership clinch Indaba
for a further three years. It is also the year in which TKZN
put together the most successful Indaba stand that won a
gold award. TKZN also introduced the Unilever Project
management tool, which included training for all project
team members. TKZN introduced innovative airport
activation and shuttle branding during Indaba.
• Creation of a destination pavilion, aimed at creating
‘oneness’ among KZN products.

• Key meetings were held with key tour operators exGermany and UK, and from which a few JMAs were
agreed.

Positive media
exposure.
Grow SMME
involvement.

SMME’s
participation.

• SMME Trade was the key focus at Indaba. TKZN
produced new business cards and brochures for
SMMEs that participated in many of the platforms
Increased number of
especially created to generate business links between
SMMEs exhibiting
them and international trade.
and involved in
Superfam.

Tourism Indaba 2006
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3.1 Marketing continued
GROUP TOURISM SUPPORT – Business, events and sports tourism
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To develop new
international source
markets.

Negotiate
discounted rates for
packages.

Level of success in
securing discounted
rates.

To increase KZN’s
share of the
international tourist
market.

Implement a trade
support programme
for foreign group
series tours, events
and business
tourism.

Percentage increase
in sales and arrival
figures for partner
operators.

To increase
domestic group
tourism into KZN.

Invest JMAs for the
domestic market.
Sho’t Left campaign
for domestic
packages support.

Performance results
TKZN was involved with the following conferences:
• Wild Talk Festival that attracted international delegates
including key personnel from National Geographic,
Animal Planet, BBC, other wildlife broadcasters and
international wildlife producers. Most delegates came
from South Africa, North America, UK, Europe and Asia.

• YMCA in July 2006 that attracted approximately
1 000 delegates from 82 countries.
Delegate registration
figures.
• General assembly meeting of the FEE (Foundation for
Environmental Education).
Incremental visitor
numbers.
A joint marketing agreement was entered into with
Tourist spend.

Thompsons Tours. This collaboration saw a new
KZN/Thompsons brochure developed and it resulted in
Thompsons growing the number of visitors to KZN to
15 847 which equates to 141% growth versus 2005.
Different media adverts were used to achieve the growth,
such as Thompsons Tours website, leaflets, radio and
newspapers.
TKZN partnered with Pumba Tours that offers Golden
Active couples in Gauteng specialised group tours to the
Drakensberg, Zululand and Elephant Coast.
They launched a travel programme, ‘Bon Voyage’, on
Radio Sonder Grense (RSG) that promotes KZN
generically with a response rate of 25 – 30%.
Constant Sho’t Left packages were negotiated for TKZN’s
network of websites.
TKZN secured a full programme for the Sho’t Left
campaign that featured Durban, South Coast and North
Coast on SABC2, flighted on 29 July 2006.
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.1 Marketing continued
GROUP TOURISM SUPPORT – Charters
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To increase KZN’s
share of the
international tourist
market.

Negotiate directly
with charter
operators for good
deals to offer tour
operators.

Level of success in
creating awareness
of KZN as a
potential charter
destination.

To position KZN as
a significant player
in the international
market in the
long term.

Pursue packages in
markets with no
direct scheduled
flights to South
Africa.

Number of
passengers
landed.

Performance results
Hungarian, Russian and Ukrainian group series
negotiations were included and were scheduled
to arrive between December 2006 and March
2007. However, due to perceived safety issues,
the Hungarian charter series was cancelled at the
eleventh hour. The Russian and Ukrainian group
services have been transferred to scheduled
airlines and there has been notable growth in
arrivals from this market.

GROUP TOURISM SUPPORT – Cruise tourism
Goal

Target

Key performance
indicator

To create awareness
of KZN as a cruise
tourism destination.

Participation at
Seatrade.

Brochures produced, Participated in the Miami Seatrade Cruise
IOCTA membership. Tourism trade show.

Participation in the
Trade guide
Indian Ocean Cruise published.
Tourism Association.

Performance results

Secured membership of the Indian Ocean Cruise
Tourism Association.
The KZN Cruise Tourism Guide was printed and
distributed at the Miami Seatrade and Khartoum
AGM.
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This spectacular
waterfall at
Howick which
plunges almost
100 metres into
the gorge below,
is a national
monument

World famous
dolphins Gambit and
friends entertain
thousands of
visitors at uShaka
Marine World which
has a 1 200-seater
dolphin stadium
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.2 Tourism information services
3.2.1

Objectives
• To collect and interpret key information to guide and monitor the strategies and programmes of TKZN;
• To measure the overall performance of KwaZulu-Natal’s tourism industry and specific TKZN activities;
• To maintain an information knowledge management system and databases to support this process; and
• To provide tourist information offices with electronic marketing tools, to edit the content of print marketing
tools, and to undertake brochure distribution.

3.2.2

Key performance areas
• Information and knowledge management; and
• Quality assurance.

3.2.3

General manager’s overview
The collation, analysis and dissemination of information is a critical function of a destination management
organisation. Information pertaining to a destination not only guides the decision of a potential tourist to visit a
destination, but also underpins the formulation and monitoring of its strategies.
The Tourism Information Services (TIS) unit undertook or completed all projects outlined in the action plan in
the period under review, including economic impact assessments of several ad hoc and annual events,
conventions and exhibitions.
It updated several reports on specific elements pertaining to TKZN’s domestic and international segmentation
and targeting, while a draft research policy and procedures manual was formulated.
An accurate register of tourism services and attractions in KwaZulu-Natal, including levels of accessibility and
ensured compliance with relevant tourist registration legislation and regulations, was maintained, as were
TKZN’s mass email forums.
The unit continued to provide a professional tourism information service and maintained a series of key
gateway and other tourism information offices.
It also made available information support at key trade and consumer shows, as well as significant events, such
as the arrival of cruise liners, and ensured the effective distribution of marketing material.
In this respect, the unit recorded an impressive growth in enquiries in all areas of engagement – telephone and
fax, ‘walk-ins’ and email, as well as national and international brochure distribution.
Crucially, in an effort to assist Easter holiday travellers, it initiated a hotline that provided information on the
state of KwaZulu-Natal’s beaches in the wake of the devastation caused by the abnormally high tides in the
latter half of March.
Much effort went into maintaining and further developing TKZN’s network of websites and other e-marketing
tools.
Continuous quality assurance is an important facet of the unit’s work. This was achieved by monitoring
KwaZulu-Natal tourism service standards through qualified registration. In addition, TIS promotes the Grading
Council of South Africa’s grading scheme.
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3.2 Tourism information services continued
3.2.4

Performance highlights
Research
• TKZN’s Brand Health Monitor was modified to incorporate SAT’s Brand Conversion Model;
• Successful completion of the first intensive convention impact assessments ever undertaken at ICC Durban;
• Continued evaluation of KwaZulu-Natal’s major events;
• A draft research policy and procedures manual was formulated;
• A useful statistics brochure for 2006/2007 was published; and
• An updated catalogue of all of TKZN’s research reports was produced.
Registration
• A total of 1 026 tourist guides were registered with TKZN;
• A total of 1 817 other tourism service providers were registered during the financial year;
• A draft short to medium-term strategy was formulated to deal with agencies that fail to register;
• A draft Tourist Guide and other Tourism Services Registration Procedures and Policy Manuals were
formulated;
• The software for TKZN’s registration system was upgraded to meet the recommendations of the 2005/2006
Audit Report for TKZN; and
• About 90% of the tourism asset database was updated over the 2006/2007 financial year.
Tourism information services
• Maintained national and regional Tourist Junction information facilities;
• Undertook a comparative analysis of other provinces’ information offices to enhance current service;
• Conducted educational and training programmes for information officers;
• Assisted Easter holidaymakers by providing an information hotline on the status of KwaZulu-Natal’s
beaches devastated by the abnormally high tides in March; and
• Managed a significant growth in telephone and fax enquiries (34,4%); ‘walk-ins’ (29,01%); emails
(32,57%); national brochure distribution (22,29%); and international brochure distribution (7,22%).
E-marketing
• A revised web strategy was developed to extend TKZN’s network of websites, intranet, fax-on-demand and
tele-tourist services.
Quality assurance
• Modified the current action plan to improve the level of grading in KwaZulu-Natal;
• Continued with grading awareness, accessibility and service excellence workshops;
• A WTO audit of TKZN was undertaken and it was accredited as the sixth best DMO worldwide to meet the
stringent requirements of this audit; and
• TKZN was nominated for the 2007 UNWTO Ulysses Award for a DMO information and knowledge
management programme for 2007.
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.2 Tourism information services continued
DOMESTIC TOURISM MARKET
KwaZulu-Natal continues to enjoy the dominant share of the domestic tourism market and it appears to be growing from
28% in 2003 to 32% in 2006. It is possible to estimate, on the basis of South African Tourism surveys for 2006, that in
the order of 11,9 million domestic adult tourists from outside or within the province travelled to one or more domestic
location within KwaZulu-Natal during 2006. Domestic surveys have revealed that each visitor spends in the region of
R446 per trip. It can therefore be concluded that the domestic tourism market in KwaZulu-Natal is worth in the order of
R5,3 billion per annum.
In December of 2003, the new Zulu Kingdom brand was launched to provide a marketing umbrella to promote the eight
key destinations: Durban, North Coast, South Coast, Elephant Coast, Zululand, Pietermaritzburg and Midlands,
Drakensberg and Battlefields.
TKZN placed a number of questions regarding brand awareness in the February 2007 AC Nielsen Omnibus survey, in
order to measure the success of the new brand. It was revealed that domestic brand awareness had risen to 60% in
February 2007 compared to 38% in 2004.
The research also showed that KwaZulu-Natal destinations were amongst the highest in terms of ‘top-of-mind’
awareness of South African destinations as is illustrated in the following chart:
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TOP OF MIIND AWARENESS – DOMESTIC DESTINATIONS

South African Tourism Branding Research has shown that unaided awareness is a critical variable that ultimately leads a
consumer to transact or decide to visit a particular destination.
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3.2 Tourism information services continued
THE INTERNATIONAL TOURISM MARKET
South African Tourism’s international surveys for 2006 revealed that approximately 20% or some 1,5 million of all
foreign tourists to South Africa spent time in KwaZulu-Natal.
KwaZulu-Natal’s foreign tourists for the first three quarters of 2006 originated primarily from the following markets:
Swaziland

23%

Lesotho

17%

Zimbabwe

10%

Botswana

8%

UK

7%

Germany

4%

USA

4%

France

3%

Mozambique

2%

Netherlands

2%

Zambia

2%

Home of the bottlenose dolphins
which are visible in large
numbers all year round
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.2 Tourism information services continued
Research, information, knowledge management and quality assurance
Goal
Research:
To collate and
monitor the latest
information
pertaining to
tourism marketing
and development in
order to develop
effective strategies
to engage the
tourism market.
To monitor TKZN’s
marketing
performance.

Key performance
indicator

Target

Reports and projects Trends
completed.
reports/fliers.
Phase 2 of
convention research
programme.
Key event impact
assessments.
Segmentation
reports.
Image survey.
Level of utilisation
of resource centre.

Performance
monitor.
Visitor book
programme.
Library service.
Annual domestic
brand health
monitor.
Omnibus survey.

Performance results
All projects earmarked in the action plan were mobilised
or completed.
They included impact assessments of:
• Thukela Raft Race
• Splashy Fen
• Zulu Rally
• Comrades Marathon
• Loerie Awards
• Royal Reed Dance
• King Shaka Day celebrations
• Dusi Canoe Marathon
• Midmar Mile
• A1 Grand Prix.
Economic impact assessments of conventions or
exhibitions undertaken:
• Water Institute of Southern Africa (WISA)
• Indaba 2006
• Emergency AIDS and healthcare funders
• Sociology
• SA Sugar Association
• Orthopaedic Association
• Chemical Engineers.
Brand Health Monitor.
Monthly panel surveys of leading tourism stakeholders
regarding performance of KZN tourism industry.
Survey to measure image of TKZN in KZN tourism trade.
Visitor Book Project.
Updates of TKZN domestic and international
segmentation and targeting approach reports.
Other reports formulated were:
• An initial segmentation and targeting report of leading
RSA inbound operators.
• Initial estimate reports for the Easter, June/July and
December/January holiday periods.
• A draft research policy and procedures manual.
Reports published:
• A useful statistics brochure for 2006/2007 was
published.
• An updated catalogue of all of TKZN research reports
was published.
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3.2 Tourism information services continued
Research, information, knowledge management and quality assurance continued
Goal
Database and
Registration
Services:
To maintain an
accurate register of
tourism services
and attractions in
KZN including levels
of accessibility.
To ensure
compliance with
relevant tourist
registration
legislation and
regulations.
To maintain TKZN’s
mass email fora.

Key performance
indicator
Maintenance of
registration/
information
databases and
related email
forums.

Target

Performance results

Level of registration,
number of database
records updated or
created, level of
compliance with
relevant legislation/
regulations.

Some 1 026 tourist guides were registered with TKZN.
Some 134 new guides have been registered since
March 2006 of which 83 are HDIs.
A total of 1 817 tourism service providers were
registered during the financial year.
A draft short to medium-term strategy has been
formulated to deal with agencies that fail to register.
Legal advice was also sought to amend the current
regulations to provide a clear enforcement or prosecution
procedure. DACT has agreed to mobilise this process.
Random site visits were undertaken to check on tourism
establishments and tourist guides operating illegally.
Draft tourist guide and other tourism services registration
procedures and policy manuals were formulated.
The software for TKZN’s registration system was
upgraded to meet the recommendations made in the
2005/2006 Audit Report.
About 90% of the tourism asset database was updated
during the 2006/2007 financial year.

Margate, Port Shepstone, Scottburgh, Port Edward, sardines,
golf, whales, dolphins, the Oribi Gorge, hibiscus flowers and golden
beaches are some of the terms which people associate with this
magnificent region of South Africa and the Zulu Kingdom
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The Lammergeyer
or bearded vulture
is an endangered
bird which is now
confined mostly
to the Drakensberg
Be captivated by the
stunning views along the
KwaZulu-Natal coast line

Durban’s main beachfront is just a
short walk away from top class
hotels. The beaches are protected
year round by shark nets and expert
lifeguards.
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3.2 Tourism information services continued
Research, information, knowledge management and quality assurance continued
Goal

Key performance
indicator

Target

Maintenance of
Cape Town,
Walk-ins to offices, Johannesburg,
To provide a
Kokstad, Montrose,
professional tourism telephone, email and
Piet Retief, Golela,
information service. fax enquiries.
Durban International
To maintain a series Level and nature of Airport (DIA),
distribution of
of key gateway
uShaka, Sandton
marketing material. and Tourist Junction
market offices.
information
To provide
facilities.
information support
at key trade,
Comparative
consumer shows
analysis of service
and key events.
with other provincial
Tourism information
services:

To distribute
marketing material.

Utilisation of
service:

information offices
to enhance current
service.
Educational/training
programme for
information officers.

Performance results
Agreements to ensure the continued existence of
TKZN’s Montrose, Kokstad, DIA, V&A, uShaka,
Golela, Piet Retief, Sandton and Tourist Junction
information facilities were concluded.
An action plan to upgrade the look and feel of the
DIA office was formulated and discussed with
ACSA. This plan is on hold until ACSA has
resolved its new retail layout plan for DIA.
An educational programme for information staff
was developed and mobilised. The following
educationals were organised for TKZN’s
information staff:
• The North Coast;
• East Griqualand and Southern Drakensberg;
• The Amble.
A distribution action plan for 2006/2007 was
developed and TKZN’s marketing collateral was
distributed in accordance with this plan.
As in previous years, a special Easter Information
Provision Campaign was mobilised at the end of
March at TKZN’s Kokstad and Montrose Gateway
offices. This campaign involved the distribution
of information packs about KZN as a tourist
destination.
Assisted Easter holidaymakers by providing a
special information hotline on the status of KZN’s
beaches devastated by the abnormally high tides
in March.
Performance statistics
Telephone and fax enquiries
45 219 (2006/2007) +34,75% versus
33 557 (2005/2006)
Walk-ins
215 264 (2006/2007) +29,01% versus
166 862 (2005/2006)
Emails
3 647 (2006/2007) +32,57% versus
2 751 (2005/2006)
National brochure distribution
640 092 (2006/2007) +22,29% versus
523 411 (2005/2006)
International brochure distribution
54 268 (2006/2007) +7,22% versus
50 615 (2005/2006)
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.2 Tourism information services continued
Research, information, knowledge management and quality assurance continued
Goal
e-Marketing:
To maintain and
further develop
TKZN’s network of
websites and other
e-marketing tools.

Key performance
indicator

Target

Performance results

Needs Analysis
reports.

Revised web
strategy.

Level of updates of
these systems.

Maintenance and
further development
of TKZN’s network
of websites, intranet,
fax-on-demand and
teli-tourist services.

An analysis of the look and feel of leading DMO websites
was conducted to determine core gaps in terms of
TKZN’s network of websites.

User rates of these
systems.

Guidelines for a new look and feel of this network were
developed by TKZN’s advertising agency, approved by
the marketing committee of the board, and rolled out to
TKZN’s main and regional websites.
TKZN is also considering a range of possible destination
management systems/booking systems for its network of
websites. The terms of reference for the development
and/or acquisition of such a system were tabled and
approved at the marketing and tourism development
committee of the board in October 2006. A tender
process was initiated to enable TKZN to make an
appropriate choice of system, and three proposals were
received. Due to the proposed costs involved and a lack
of budget, the TKZN bid committee decided to cancel the
tender until sufficient funds could be raised.
Unique user rate
940 260 (2006/07) +6,75% versus 880 770 (2005/06).

Quality assurance:
Monitor KZN
tourism service
standards through
qualified registration
and grading of
service providers.

Level of grading in
KZN.
Level of awareness
of the National
Grading Scheme
and the concept of
accessibility.
Service ratings
derived from
national tourism
surveys.

Tracking survey to
determine increases
in levels of
awareness of the
TGCSA grading
scheme and reasons
for not joining this
scheme.

A survey of KZN accommodation establishments to
determine the reasons for low levels of grading was
completed. This formed the basis of an action plan to
deal with the problem. The plan was approved by the
board and implemented in the latter half of 2006.

Modification of the
action plan to
improve the level of
grading in KZN.

The WTO conducted a best practices audit to determine
how TKZN fared in terms of DMO best practice. TKZN
was accredited as the sixth DMO in the world to meet the
audit’s stringent requirements.

Continuation of
grading awareness,
accessibility and
service excellence
workshops.

As a result TKZN was also nominated for the 2007
UNWTO Ulysses Award for a DMO.

A survey to determine awareness levels of the concept of
accessibility in the KZN accommodation sector was
completed.

Two sets of workshops were held in the main centres of
KZN to promote the concepts of grading and registration,
the MATCH contract and the TEP and DTI tourism
assistance schemes.
These workshops, attended by more than 800 tourism
service providers, were used as an opportunity to raise
the levels of awareness of the concept of accessibility.
A leaflet promoting the concepts of grading and
registration was posted to all tourism service providers
in KZN in December 2006.
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3.3 Public relations and communications
3.3.1

Objectives
• To create and optimally utilise communication opportunities to build and maintain a positive image of the
Zulu Kingdom brand amongst consumers and stakeholders;
• To increase brand awareness;
• To manage and control messages to both external and internal stakeholders; and
• To ensure ongoing internal communications.

3.3.2

Key performance areas
• Image building;
• Media leverage;
• Corporate events;
• Corporate communications;
• Tourism awareness;
• Tourism month; and
• Customer care management.

3.3.3

General manager’s overview
During the year under review, the PR and communications unit ensured that it delivered on its core mandate to
build and maintain a positive image of the Zulu Kingdom brand, identify and optimally utilise media leverage
opportunities for brand promotion, build and maintain healthy internal and external stakeholder relations,
effectively provide tourist after-care services, promote service excellence within the tourism industry, and
promote greater tourism awareness.
In boosting the destination’s image TKZN activated various platforms to communicate to consumers, tourism
trade and various other partners. A number of activities were also carried out as part of our efforts to build a
positive image of the Zulu Kingdom, with media value generated during this period in excess of R155 million.
Bi-monthly consumer and trade newsletters were produced and distributed. While the consumer newsletter
focused on showcasing the Zulu Kingdom’s unique tourism offerings, supported by a travel prize giveaway, the
trade newsletter was used as a platform to give our trade partners feedback on our marketing activities and keep
them informed of TKZN’s marketing plans.
Another consumer platform effectively implemented during this period was our active participation in the widely
popular bi-monthly consumer publication – What, Where and When (WWW), again utilising this platform to
build a good image of the Zulu Kingdom destination.
A number of advertorials were placed in various publications to ensure ongoing destination information
presence in key media platforms. This included advertorials in National Golf Network, Rootz, KZN Top Business
Portfolio, Impumelelo and Business Week China.
TKZN also had presence in Business Day’s The Tourist supplement, distributed once monthly to the 103 000
people who read the newspaper.
Several international and national journalists were hosted for destination profiling as well as the hosting of
VIPs for destination endorsement.
International journalists hosted where from Paris, UK, Germany, Poland, Norway and India.
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
3.3.3

General manager’s overview continued
The highlight of the VIP hosting programme was in February 2007 when the international motor racing
tournament, the A1 Grand Prix of Nations, was hosted in Durban for the second year running. Drivers
from different countries were given a true Zulu Kingdom experience. They visited a Zulu village where
they were taught Zulu dancing and sampled umqombothi, before moving on to the Hluhluwe Imfolozi
Game Reserve and Lake St Lucia.
The drivers’ excursion through Big Five country and their visit to Lake St Lucia to see the hippos was
recorded on video and beamed to millions of people across the world, who watched the race.
TKZN took advantage of the opportunity presented by the 2006 FIFA World Cup held in Germany by
activating brand promotion at a fan park in Hamburg. This included securing the participation of the
Bafana Bafana player Delron Buckley, who plays and lives in Germany and is a popular soccer
personality there. Buckley spent a day signing autographs at the Zulu Kingdom tent, while a basket
weaver showed spectators how to weave, and together with a curio maker, sold her wares.
Two local journalists, from Independent Newspapers and SABC TV, attended the activation, which
received good media coverage both locally and in Germany.
As already mentioned in the CEO’s report, the year under review saw a number of interventions being
made by TKZN towards ensuring that visitors to the Zulu Kingdom received good quality service.
The PR and communications unit successfully drove a service excellence competition, encouraging
industry players to improve their service levels through recognising best practice. We worked very
closely with the Grading Council of South Africa on the competition as grading of products is a strong
tool for quality assurance. Furthermore, we teamed up with the body for restaurants, the Chaîne de
Rôtisseurs, which assisted us in getting the restaurant sector to participate in the competition. A
workshop was held specifically for this sector, addressing issues pertinent to good quality service
delivery.
The highlight of the competition was the fact that it was structured such that there was a good balance
between big tourism players and small, black-owned businesses that are making their mark within the
industry.
The KwaZulu-Natal launch of Tourism Month, celebrated every year in September across South Africa,
was aimed at encouraging South Africans to discover the beauty of the province.
The launch recognised BEE success in the province’s tourism industry that is increasingly reflecting
KwaZulu-Natal’s racial diversity. The launch was at Nongoma Lodge in the Zululand region, an
enterprise that has grown over the years and boasts satellite lodges in other parts of the province.
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The coast of
the Zulu Kingdom
is a surfer’s
paradise. There
are surfable
waves all along
the coastline

Fought in January 1879 the Battle of
Isandlwana is one of the most famous
Anglo-Zulu wars in which a British force
of 1 700 was virtually wiped out by a Zulu
army of over 20 000 under the command of
Ntshingwayo Khosa and Mavumengwana Ntuli
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
3.3.4

Performance highlights
Image building
• Hosted international media at Indaba 2006 and Durban Fashion Week 2006;
• Produced bi-monthly consumer newsletters to showcase the Zulu Kingdom’s unique tourism offerings;
• Hosted internationally acclaimed comedian Steve Harvey who produced several of his US radio shows at
Durban’s ICC; and
• Hosted A1 motor racing drivers at venues in Zululand and the Elephant Coast.
Media leverage
• SABC TV and Independent Newspapers journalists hosted during the 2006 Soccer World Cup in Hamburg,
Germany;
• Leveraged support for Royal Reed Dance, the Loerie Awards, and King Shaka Day; and
• Conducted a trade and media launch of the new domestic marketing campaign.
Corporate events
• Superfam dinner at Indaba 2006 (May 2006);
• CEO’s breakfast at Indaba 2006 (May 2006);
• Successfully launched Tourism Month, themed ‘Celebrating our heritage through tourism’ by highlighting a
BEE product, Nongoma Lodge (August 2006);
• Assisted in the coordination of South African Tourism’s launch of the third leg of Sho’t Left, held at uShaka
Marine World (July 2006); and
• Managed the Provincial Tourism Conference, including media attendance and coverage (November 2006).
Corporate communications
• Produced bi-monthly trade and consumer newsletters. Hosted various stakeholders at TKZN’s ABSA
Stadium Suite;
• Produced the annual report 2005/6; and
• Various platforms were utilised throughout the year to communicate to internal stakeholders, including
regular updates via email and monthly sessions and distribution of the internal newsletter, eZakithi.
Tourism awareness
Several community road shows were held during the year under review to encourage tourist safety, and
highlight career and business opportunities in tourism.
Customer care
• Assistance was given to tourists who were victims of crime;
• Tourism ambassadors were used at various tourism events, including Indaba 2006;
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•

TKZN made available a special hotline to provide information to tourists
about beaches after they were damaged by unusually high tides, in early
2007; and

•

Entries for the 2007 Service Excellence Awards were up by 33% compared
to 2006, while the number of winners more than doubled from 10 in 2006
to 22 in 2007.

Service Excellence
Awards 2007

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
IMAGE BUILDING
Goal

Key performance
indicator

To build a positive
image of the Zulu
Kingdom with
regards to hygiene
factors such as
safety, service,
access, health and
infrastructure.

Extent to which the
perceptions about
the province
enhance a positive
image in key
domestic and
international target
markets.

Target

Performance results

Utilise domestic and
international media
to communicate
positive messages
about the Zulu
Kingdom.

Utilised key events as an opportunity to expose media to
the tourism offerings in KZN, including:

Extent of positive
consumer feedback
through the TIS
feedback system.

• Hosted 21 international media that attended the
Durban Fashion Week 2006.
• Used the CEO’s Breakfast at Indaba 2006 to instil
trade, media and investor confidence in KZN.

Extent of positive
media reports
regarding the
hygiene issues in
the province.
To build the image
of TKZN.

• International media that attended Indaba 2006.

• Ongoing relationship with the safety and security
authorities.
• TKZN represented on the provincial priority committee
on safety and security.
Lobbying the
relevant authorities
to deal with areas of
responsibility
regarding tourism
related issues.

• Produced and distributed a bi-monthly trade
newsletter, a critical vehicle through which trade
partners are informed of TKZN’s marketing activities.
• Produced and distributed a bi-monthly consumer
newsletter showcasing the Zulu Kingdom’s unique
tourism offerings and profiling new products.

Lobby tourism
players to:
• give excellent
service; and
• communicate
positively about
the destination to
consumers.
Facilitate regular
Extent of trade and
trade engagements,
consumer
understanding of the led by CEO.
role and functions of
TKZN by means of a
trade and consumer
survey.

• Worked jointly with the marketing department in
hosting the inaugural quarterly Tourism Trade Forum
aimed at sharing tourism information, giving feedback
to trade on TKZN’s marketing activities and
communicating activities.

The extent to which
the trade and partner
organisations view
TKZN as a leader in
tourism promotion,
development and
marketing.
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
IMAGE BUILDING continued
Goal
To increase the Zulu
Kingdom’s brand
awareness through
destination
endorsements.

Key performance
indicator
Successful media
leverage and brand
endorsement.

Target

Performance results

Implement special
guest programmes
to host influential
personalities and
celebrities, thereby
creating PR
platforms for brand
endorsement and
image building.

• Hosted various international artists for destination
endorsement, including internationally acclaimed
comedian Steve Harvey, who produced several of his
US radio shows at Durban’s ICC.

Target

Performance results

Identify and
implement PR
opportunities for the
marketing, tourism
development and
CEO’s projects, as
defined in the
integrated annual
action plan.

Highlights include the hosting of two local journalists
(SABC TV and Independent Newspapers) during 2006
Soccer World Cup in Hamburg, Germany, which in turn
ensured that the activation received positive media
coverage.

• Provided regular media updates on positive
developments within the province.

MEDIA LEVERAGE
Goal
To improve media
exposure through
solicited and
unsolicited print and
electronic media in
key target markets
for the province as
Africa’s leading
destination.
To profile the Zulu
Kingdom and its
eight destinations,
with the specific aim
of augmenting
marketing
communications
spend.
Build stronger
media relations.

Key performance
indicator
The extent of media
leverage for the
marketing, tourism
development and
CEO’s projects
identified.
The extent of media
leverage for the Zulu
Kingdom and its
eight destinations.
The increase in rand
value of media
leverage in key
target markets.
Level of success in
brand message
consistency.

The ratio of positive
to negative media
Ensure greater brand coverage.
awareness through
events.
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PR leverage support was given to the following events:
• Royal Reed Dance (international media familiarisation
trip, marketing of the event, and media packs were
provided at the event).

Identify and
implement media
• Loerie Awards, (media leverage resulting in positive
leverage
media coverage).
opportunities for the
Zulu Kingdom and
• King Shaka Celebrations (marketing of the event).
its eight
Tourism Month was successfully launched in Nongoma,
destinations.
receiving widespread positive media coverage nationally.
Host domestic and
international media PR leverage support was given to the:
• Dusi Canoe Marathon – a media statement welcoming
on familiarisation
canoeists to the Zulu Kingdom and providing a
trips, spread across
projected economic impact for the event, was issued.
the eight
destinations.
• A1 Grand Prix – an advertorial was placed in Business
Monitor media on
daily basis and
conduct monthly
coverage analysis,
supported with
follow up
action/crisis
management in
instances of bad
coverage.
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Editor’s Forum with editors, started in May 2006.

Day’s The Tourism supplement and a media statement
about the local economic benefits of the race, was
issued.

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
MEDIA LEVERAGE continued
Goal

Key performance
indicator
Successful
development and
implementation of
the 2006 Tourism
Month programme.
Level of media
exposure generated.

Target

Performance results

Utilise Tourism
• Midmar Mile – a media statement was issued
Month in September
encouraging participation.
to drive a media
• Royal Reed Dance (Umkhosi Womhlanga) – PR
campaign aimed at
support was given by hosting international and local
promoting domestic
media, marketing the event, and providing media packs
travel.
at the event.
Identify and
• The Loeries and King Shaka Day, both held in
implement PR and
September on the South Coast and in Zululand
media leverage
respectively, were given support resulting in positive
opportunities of
media coverage of the events.
the following events
Substantial media coverage was received throughout the
supported by the
Marketing Business year, with highlights including:
• Trade and media launch of the new domestic marketing
Unit:
campaign.
• Dusi Canoe
Marathon

• Launch of Tourism Month.

• Midmar Mile

• The inaugural Tourism BEE Summit held in October
2006.

• Splashy Fen

• Provincial Tourism Conference in November 2006.

• Pilsner Urquell
Celebrity Golf

Other media leveraging activities included:

• A1 Grand-Prix

• Durban Fashion
Week
• Comrades
Marathon
• Sardine Run
• Royal Reed Dance
• Loeries

• Buying monthly advertorial space in The Tourist, a
tourism supplement in Business Day, a national daily
newspaper, which was used for destination marketing.
• Sponsoring and contributing editorial content to
Tourism in the Zulu Kingdom the tourism supplement
of the Daily News, a local daily afternoon newspaper.
• Carrying destination advertorials in various
publications including Rootz, KZN Top Business
Portfoloio; Impumelelo; National Golf Network and
Business Week China.
• Issuing many media statements on various marketing
activities and the performance by the KZN tourism
industry, which received widespread positive media
coverage.
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For over a million
years during the Stone
Age the Drakensberg was
occupied by the San
hunter gatherers. All that
remains of these people
are 35 000 rock art
images

Abseiling is a popular pastime
and experiences include the
Valley of 1 000 Hills and Oribi
Gorge on the South Coast

56

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
CORPORATE EVENTS
Goal
Utilise TKZN events
to promote the Zulu
Kingdom brand.
To promote the Zulu
Kingdom brand and
corporate identity at
key corporate
events.

Key performance
indicator
Implementation of
corporate events,
alignment with the
brand and
compliance with the
events protocol and
events plan.
Level of awareness
among staff and
board members
regarding the
corporate events
protocol and plan.

Target

Performance results

Manage functions
and events, which
are hosted and
implemented by
TKZN, ensuring
consistent brand
identity
management.

TKZN corporate event’s hosted during the year
include:

Identify and
coordinate TKZN
participation at
strategic corporate
functions.

Level of success in
reducing ad hoc
events.
The level of success
in ensuring that
corporate events are
appropriately spread
across all divisions.

• Superfam Dinner at Indaba 2006 (May 2006).
• CEO’s Breakfast at Indaba 2006 (May 2006).
• Coordinated and project managed the launch of
the new domestic marketing campaign at
Gateway Cinema (August 2006).
• Successfully launched Tourism Month, with the
theme ‘Celebrating our heritage through
tourism’ by highlighting a BEE product,
Nongoma Lodge (August 2006).
• Assisted with the coordination of South African
Tourism’s launch of the third leg of Sho’t Left,
held at uShaka Marine World (July 2006).
• Coordinated and managed the Provincial
Tourism Conference, including media
attendance and coverage (November 2006).
• Provided media leverage support for TKZN’s
BEE Tourism Conference (October 2006).
• Supported, and ensured brand awareness at
the Black Management Forum Conference
(October 2006).
• Coordinated and managed the Annual
Provincial Tourism Conference jointly with the
KZN DACT (November 2006).
• Coordinated and managed a media breakfast to
announce festive season tourism performance
(January 2007).
Corporate events at which TKZN participated:
• Durban Chamber of Commerce 15th
Anniversary dinner (April 2006).
• African Renaissance Gala Dinner (May 2006).
• KZN Successful Alumni launches
(Johannesburg – May 2006; Cape Town –
November 2006).
• Participated in the A1 to ensure brand visibility
(February 2007).
• Sponsored give-aways at the launch of the ICC
Arena (March 2007).

Blesbok can be seen in game
reserves throughout KwaZulu-Natal

• Bought a corporate table at igagasi FM’s First
Birthday Corporate Dinner, to ensure brand
visibility and form a closer working
relationship with the station (March 2007).

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7

57

3. Programme performance

continued

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
Goal
To promote and
communicate the
organisational
objectives,
achievements and
the brand to external
stakeholders.
To promote and
communicate the
organisational
objectives,
achievements and
the brand to internal
stakeholders.

Key performance
indicator

Target

Performance results

Successful
distribution of
Tourism Strategy
2006 – 2011.

Communicating the
Tourism Strategy
2006 – 2011 to
stakeholders.

• Strategy distributed.

The extent to which
external
stakeholders
understand the
TKZN marketing
plans for the Zulu
Kingdom.

The compilation,
production and
distribution of the
2005/6 Annual
Report.

Level of success in
creating awareness
of TKZN’s
achievements and
the performance of
KZN as a tourism
destination.
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• Input made on the bi-monthly consumer publication,
WWW.
• Hosted various stakeholders at TKZN’s ABSA Stadium
Suite.

• Various platforms were utilised throughout the year to
communicate to internal stakeholders, including
regular updates via email and monthly staff feedback
Successful input to
sessions and distribution of the internal newsletter,
and distribution of
eZakithi.
the new pages in the
bi-monthly issues of
WWW magazine.

Successful
production and
distribution of
external stakeholder
The extent to which (trade, consumer
internal stakeholders and media)
electronic
understand and
newsletters.
implement the
organisational
Successful
objectives, are
production and
aware of TKZN
distribution of
achievements and
internal electronic
live the Zulu
and print news
Kingdom brand.
bulletin.
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• Annual report distributed.

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
TOURISM AWARENESS
Goal
To ensure that
communities
understand the
importance
and the benefits of
tourism to the
province.

Key performance
indicator

Target

Performance results

The number of
tourism awareness
programmes held
throughout the
province.

Hold tourism
awareness
roadshows in the
Zulu Kingdom’s
eight destinations.

Several community roadshows were held during the year
under review, including:

The level of success
in implementing
joint campaigns that
create tourism
awareness.

Implement joint
tourism awareness
campaigns with key
stakeholders.
Radio campaigns –
mainstream and
community radios.
Lobby safety and
security authorities
to include tourism
awareness in their
media campaigns.

• Pre-Indaba 2006 community roadshows in May 2006
at Umlazi, KwaMashu, Durban CBD and Pinetown,
highlighting the benefits of tourism and encouraging
friendliness towards tourists.
• Awareness roadshows were held at various Ulundi and
KwaNongoma schools during Tourism Month and pre
the Royal Reed Dance (Umkhosi Womhlanga),
highlighting the importance of tourist safety and
providing information on career opportunities in the
tourism industry.
• Took part in the Umsunduzi Municipality’s Township
Tourism Festival.
• Continued to work with the Tourism Development
Department in partnering with District Municipalities
on tourism awareness projects, with roadshows held
with uThukela district municipality in October 2006.
• Safety Tips brochures were printed and distributed to
various accredited establishments across the province
as well as at the key toll roads as part of a pre holiday
campaign.

Gingingdlovu, meaning Swallower
of the Elephant, is a small coastal
town between Empangeni and
Richards Bay. During the Anglo-Zulu
wars, British soldiers unable to get
their tongues around the word dubbed
the town Gin Gin I love you
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.3 Public relations and communications continued
CUSTOMER CARE MANAGEMENT
Goal
To champion the
cause of service
excellence within the
tourism industry.

Key performance
indicator
Increase in positive
feedback from the
Grading Council,
the website and
customer care line.
Repeat visitations to
the Zulu Kingdom
by people who were
victims of crime.

Target

Performance results

Work with the
Grading Council of
SA to assess
consumer feedback
and remedy where
necessary.

Complaints about establishments graded by the
Tourism Grading Council were forwarded to the
council and followed up.

Maintain the
customer database
and implement an
No complaints about incentive
programme for
outstanding
customers with
responses.
previous bad
The successful
holiday experiences.
implementation of
Manage the tourist
the service
safety advisory
excellence award
project and the
programme.
Tourism
The extent to which Ambassador
Zulu Kingdom
programme.
Awards winners are
Responding to
employed by TKZN.
complaints within
The successful
24 hours.
implementation of
Ensure greater
the service
promotion of the
excellence project.
customer care line

Assistance was given in cases where tourists
were victims of crime.
Tourism ambassadors were deployed at various
tourism events, including Indaba 2006.
Conducted a tollgate destination marketing and
tourist safety campaign during the Easter, winter
and festive holiday seasons.
Ensured that all TKZN promotional brochures
include the customer care line telephone number.
TKZN made available a special line to provide
tourism information pertaining to beaches around
the province after damage caused by unusually
high tides in early 2007.
The external incentive award programme started
in October 2006. Categories were modified to
ensure inclusivity; that various industry
stakeholders served on the adjudication panel;
and that the competition was supported by an
extensive media campaign.
Winners of the Zulu Kingdom awards were
advised on directing their prizes towards the
promotion and development of their businesses.

using TKZN
produced brochures. The service excellence awards were successfully
held at the ICC, with an increase in the number of
Develop and
entries received – at 33% – as well as an
implement a threeincrease in the number of emerging businesses
year provincial
that received awards. The number of winners has
strategy for tourism more than doubled from 10 in 2006 to 22 in
service excellence.
2007.
Employ the services
The winners’ services were also actively used by
of award winners,
TKZN particularly with regards to media hosting.
thereby creating PR
Winners in the media category visited Germany
platforms to
to report on the 2006 Soccer World Cup and
highlight the
TKZN’s Hamburg activation.
benefits of service
excellence.
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The arrival of the annual
migration of sardines is
one of nature’s highlights on
the South Coast calendar
and a tourism experience
unique to the Zulu Kingdom

The Hluhluwe-Umfolozi
game reserve is
focusing its efforts
on saving the
endangered black
rhino, whose number
in Africa has
dwindled from 14 000
to a pitiful 2 550 in
the past decade

The South Coast is popularly known as
the golf coast thanks to a comprehensive
selection of eleven fine courses. The
Sanlameer golf course is one of these
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.4 Tourism development
3.4.1

Objectives
• To develop and facilitate demand-driven tourism infrastructure;
• To fast-track tourism growth in the province by facilitating tourism investments in conjunction with Trade
and Investment KwaZulu-Natal (TIKZN); and
• To provide strategic business advice and support of the development of tourism BEE within the province.

3.4.2

Key performance areas destination development
• Health and safety;
• Tourism infrastructure;
• BEE and SMME advisory services;
• Tourism BEE and SMME skills development; and
• Tourism BEE charter programme.

3.4.3

General manager’s overview
The test of the success of TKZN’s Tourism Growth Strategy is in its contribution to direct economic benefit for
the people of KwaZulu-Natal. TKZN remains committed to assisting previously marginalised members of
society in their efforts to actively participate in the provincial tourism industry through the promotion and
facilitation of their product offering.
TKZN also realises that its competitive advantage lies in the people behind its tourism products. Training and
development, quality assurance and service delivery improvements, therefore, constitute a key thrust over the
next five years as we strive to ensure a quality tourism experience for visitors to the province, and help
stimulate an incremental growth in visitor numbers.
In October 2006, TKZN signed a memorandum of agreement with the Tourism Enterprise Programme (TEP),
with the aim to maximise training opportunities for black tourism businesses.
Consequently, a targeted Mpophomeni TEP was initiated in partnership with the Umngeni municipality. The
programme concluded with the handing over of certificates to 15 participants who successfully completed their
Tourism and Hospitality Education Training Authority (THETA) skills programme.
Tourism BEE skills development is underpinned by a mentorship programme that is funded by the DACT and
the TEP.
A second intake of candidates in 2006 is undergoing training that will see 10 small businesses being partnered
with established businesses.
Through DEAT’s small business development programme, SMMEs are partially compensated for certain costs
incurred when they attend accredited international workshops, such as the Singapore Cooperation Programmes,
and exhibitions.
The purpose is to encourage and assist South African companies to introduce their products to foreign markets
by participating in recognised workshops and exhibitions.
The two-week course is designed to ensure that participants will be able to apply what they have learnt in their
home countries. Two SMMEs, namely, Villa Capri Guest House and Lindsay Paradise Guest House were
selected by TKZN to participate in the programme, which took place in February 2006.
The Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award (ETAYA) programme awards were aimed at rewarding efforts of
new emerging tourism businesses. It is a partnership between the Department of Environment Affairs and
Tourism (DEAT) and South African Tourism (SAT) and is sponsored by ABSA.
A total of 18 SMMEs from KwaZulu-Natal entered the ETEYA programme, and five were short-listed and trained
on presentation skills in preparation of the adjudication process.
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3.4 Tourism development continued
3.4.3

General manager’s overview continued
After a thorough adjudication process, Imvubu Guest House and Conference Centre was selected as the
KwaZulu-Natal provincial winner and joined the other eight provincial winners at the World Trade Market in
London in November 2006.
The Tourism Service Excellence awards are aimed at promoting a culture of excellence. The Tourism
Development Business Unit assisted in mobilising black businesses to enter the 2007 leg of the awards.
The department also played a significant role at Indaba 2006 and assisted with the identification of some
30 emerging businesses to take part in the 2007 show. It also assisted in training participants in the
practicalities of exhibiting at a show of this nature.
In compliance with the DTI’s B-BBEE Codes of Good Practice, the department participated in a consultative
workshop on how to align the Codes with the Tourism Charter.
TKZN attended the Tourism Africa 2006 Congress in Geneva to encourage financing and investment of tourist
projects in Africa, promoting African destinations and tourist activities, and preserving African heritage.
The department also attended a tourism sector workshop on attracting foreign direct investment in Durban and
participated in a skills transfer workshop aimed at tourism officials.
As mentioned in the CEO’s report, discussions are ongoing with Spoornet about the development of railway
tourism routes.
Ongoing land tenure issues surrounding the eMakhosini project, near Ulundi has unfortunately led to its
cancellation, while the King Shaka Heritage Route has been revived following the successful sourcing of
additional funding.
Furthermore, the KwaZulu-Natal Signage project is well underway with the manufacture and erection of the
signs for the Valley of a Thousand Hills, Southern Explorer, King Shaka Route, Ukhahlamba Drakensberg and
Mnweni Valley.
The Lilani Hot Springs Development, which included the upgrading of the natural hot springs, accommodation
and restaurant facilities, is in its third phase and will see extensive additions to the existing infrastructure, while
an offer to revise the Ngome Reserve Project, which includes the completion of the accommodation units and
central lodge with conference facilities, was presented for consideration.
TKZN was elected by other provincial tourism authorities to develop a national framework on the safety of
tourists. The final National Tourism Safety and Awareness plan was prepared for submission to MINMEC.
The department’s BEE advisory service assisted a total of 200 individuals who received information on how to
start tourism businesses.
The department also participated in a consultative workshop on how to align the B-BBEE Codes with the
Tourism Charter along with 80 officials representing the BEE Council, the secretariat, and DEAT, DACT, TKZN
and district municipalities.

3.4.4

Performance highlights
Tourism BEE and SMME advisory services
• 200 individuals received information on starting a tourism businesses.
• Imvubu Guest House and Conference Centre was chosen as the overall provincial winner and invited to
participate at the London World Travel Market.
• Tourism Development Business Unit identified 10 SMMEs for the service excellence award competition.
• 34 black businesses participated in Indaba 2006 as part of developmental growth.
• TKZN is a partner in the mentorship programme that is funded by the DACT and TEP.
• DACT MEC, Weziwe Thusi, launched the first intake in December 2006. The second intake is underway with
10 SMMEs partnered with established businesses.
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3. Programme performance

continued

3.4 Tourism development continued
3.4.4

Performance highlights continued
• TKZN has participated in the evaluation process of the business management training programme.
• TKZN is a partner in the programme with TEP, Mpophomeni Tourism Experience, Umngeni municipality
and Beverley Catering Services.
• 15 accommodation homestay operators in Mpophomeni township were trained to be skilled as assistant
chefs, in housekeeping, and reception services.
• The Tourism BEE Charter was launched in KwaZulu-Natal by the DACT MEC on 14 September 2006.
Tourism BEE scorecard compliance
TKZN participated in a consultative workshop with the BEE Council, the Secretariat, DEAT, DACT, TKZN and
district municipalities on how to align the Codes to the Tourism Charter in March 2007.
Destination development
• In September 2006, TKZN attended the Tourism Africa 2006 Congress, Geneva that brought decisionmakers together from the public and private sectors involved in the development of Africa’s tourism
industry.
• TKZN participated in the regional workshop on Investment Promotion and Investor Targeting in the Tourism
Sector, Durban, in December 2006.
• A Railway Tourism Association was formed to address railway tourism issues for KwaZulu-Natal.
• TKZN assisted in the formulation of Business and Implementation Plans for the King Shaka Express Route
and Sisonke Express.
• Service providers were invited to draw up a new business plan for the Isibhubhu tourism project,
previously known as the Isibaya project, at the Enyokeni Royal Palace, near Nongoma.
• The King Shaka Heritage Route project has been revived and additional funding has been secured by the
Ilembe district municipality to implement the route.
• The KwaZulu-Natal Signage project is underway with the manufacture and erection of the signs for the
Valley of a Thousand Hills, Southern Explorer, King Shaka Route, Ukhahlamba Drakensberg and
Mnweni Valley.
• To date R1 019 112 has been spent on 352 signs that have created 2 316 temporary job-person days since
June 2006.
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3.4 Tourism development continued
TOURISM BEE AND SMME ADVISORY SERVICES
Goal

Key performance
indicator

Target

Performance results

To provide business
advisory services to
aspiring tourism
entrepreneurs.

Number of tourism
BEE and SMMEs
provided with
advisory services.

Ongoing provision
of tourism business
advisory services to
BEE and SMMEs.

A total of 200 individuals received information on how to
start a tourism business in ongoing one-on-one
meetings.

Number of incubator
and mentorship
programmes
successfully
facilitated.

Facilitate incubator
and mentorship
programmes.

Number of business
linkages
successfully
facilitated.

As part of the information dissemination programme the
following initiatives were undertaken:
• Workshop with Umhlathuze Tourism Association on
tourism compliance for tour operators.

Facilitate business
• Workshop with 30 SMME tour operators in eThekwini
linkages for BEE and
in March 2006.
SMMEs with
established tourism • Supply Chain Management and Tourism workshop in
Pietermaritzburg.
entities.
• eThekwini Metro, in partnership with the TEP and
TKZN, conducted a series of workshops in uMlazi,
Lamontville and Wentworth to emerging enterprises on
business opportunities as well as legal requirements
for accreditation and grading.
ETEYA 2006
After a lengthy process, which included short-listing, and
thorough adjudication, Imvubu Guest House and
Conference Centre emerged as the overall provincial
winner.
As one of nine provincial representatives, Imvubu Guest
House and Conference Centre participated at the World
Trade Market in London.
Service excellence awards
Tourism service excellence awards are an extension of
TKZN’s commitment to service excellence. The Tourism
Development Business Unit identified 10 SMMEs for the
service excellence award competition. After short-listing
the finalists, the unit then conducted site visits.
INDABA 2006
34 black businesses participated at Indaba 2006 as part
of their developmental process.
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The Midmar Mile
is one of the
world’s largest
open water
swimming events.
Now in its
34th year it has
become a
KwaZulu-Natal
tradition

Herds of buck as well as the big five,
lion, elephant, buffalo, rhino and
cheetah as well as whales can be
viewed in one day on the North Coast

The world famous Amphitheatre in the
Drakensberg in the northern Ukhahlamba
Drakensberg Park, KwaZulu-Natal is a
crescent of 1 000 m of sheer basalt cliffs
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3.4 Tourism development continued
TOURISM BEE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
Goal
To facilitate the
skills development
for tourism BEE and
SMME
entrepreneurs.

Key performance
indicator
The extent of the
successful
identification of
training
interventions
required.
The number of
training
interventions
facilitated to address
identified skills
needs.

Target

Performance results

Facilitate the
identification of
training
interventions
required to address
skills gaps within
the tourism BEE and
SMMEs.

Mentorship programme
TKZN is a partner in this programme that is
funded by the DACT and TEP.

Facilitate training
and capacity
building
interventions for
tourism BEE and
SMMEs.

Business management training programme
TKZN participated in the evaluation process of
the training, and has been assured that the funds
will be available once the agreement has been
renewed.

The DACT MEC officially launched the first intake
in December 2006.
The second intake is underway with 10 SMMEs
partnered with established businesses.

Mpophomeni tourism enterprises training
programme
This is a partnership programme between TKZN,
TEP, Mpophomeni Tourism Experience, Umngeni
municipality and Beverley Catering Services.
The purpose of this training intervention was for
15 accommodation homestay operators in
Mpophomeni township near Howick to be skilled
in the following categories:
• Assistant chef
• Housekeeping
• Reception.
The skills programme was aligned with THETA
and participants were presented with a certificate
on completion of the course.
Indaba 2006 exhibition training
34 businesses were afforded the opportunity to
attend Indaba 2007. In a bid to professionalise
the selected SMMEs, they were provided with the
necessary training, which was funded by TKZN.
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3.4 Tourism development continued
TOURISM BEE SCORECARD COMPLIANCE
Goal

Key performance
indicator

To monitor and
facilitate BEE
scorecard
implementation and
compliance.

Number of
workshops held to
promote tourism
BEE scorecard and
compliance.
Level of success in
developing the
tourism BEE
database and
utilisation thereof.

Target

Performance results

Promote business
benefits of the
tourism BEE
scorecard.

The Tourism BEE Charter brand was launched by the
DEAT national minister in May 2006.

Develop accredited
tourism BEE
database to facilitate
business linkages as
part of the scorecard
implementation.

The Department of Trade and Industry’s (DTI) B-BBEE
Codes of Good Practice were gazetted on
6 February 2007.

Consequently, the Charter was launched in KZN by the
DACT MEC on 14 September 2006.

KZN BEE consultative workshop
The tourism BEE Council, the Secretariat, DEAT, DACT,
TKZN and district municipalities participated in a
consultative workshop on how to align the Codes to the
Tourism Charter in March 2007.
TKZN and DACT continue to participate in the provincial
and metro focal points quarterly meetings.

The 1910 Edwardian neo-baroque City Hall
houses the intricately detailed Natural
Science Museum, main Public Library and the
Durban Art Gallery. With many fine examples
of national and international artworks in
all media, the gallery now focuses on
contemporary South African creations
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3.4 Tourism development continued
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT
Goal
To fast-track tourism
growth in the
province by
facilitating tourism
investments.

Key performance
indicator
Facilitate the
investment and
development of
diversified tourism
products as per the
national tourism
development study
from DEAT.

Target

Performance results

Level of success in
securing investment
and development as
recommended in the
national product
development study.

Tourism Africa 2006
(Tourism opportunities and partnership in SA)
The Tourism Africa 2006 Congress was held in Geneva
in September 2006, and for the first time brought
together decision-makers from the public and private
sectors involved in the development of Africa’s tourism
industry. TIKZN and TKZN used the platform to market
investment projects.
Attracting FDI into the tourism sector
TKZN participated in the regional workshop on
investment promotion and investor targeting in the
tourism sector by WAIPA in Durban in December 2006.
The report for the tourism investment strategy has been
finalised. The report summarises the entire project
process and project outcomes and provides several
recommendations for its implementation.
Skills transfer to tourism officials
in KwaZulu-Natal
A half-day workshop, attended by more than 20 tourism
officials throughout the province, was hosted by TKZN
and conducted by Lindon Consulting Corporation.
The objective of the workshop was to transfer skills and
lessons learned in the development and marketing of
new tourism product proposals.
An overview of investment promotion strategy and tactics
was also covered. The complete curriculum used in the
skills transfer workshop is available on request.

To develop new
routes and
experiences.

Facilitate the
prioritisation and
implementation of at
least one railway
tourism route.

The level of success
in implementation of
railway tourism
route.

Railway Tourism Route
A Railway Tourism Association was formed and railway
tourism issues for KwaZulu-Natal are being addressed
through this forum.
TKZN assisted in the formulation of business and
implementation plans for the King Shaka Express Route
and Sisonke Express.
The Sisonke business plan addresses black economic
empowerment in that the Malanda Business Group will
be appointed as the operator for the project.
Cabinet as a priority project has identified the Sisonke
Express project and funding through the KZN Gijima
project appears to be secured.
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3.4 Tourism development continued
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT continued
Goal
To develop anchor
tourism nodes along
the Zulu Heritage
and Cultural Route.

Key performance
indicator

Target

Performance results

The level of success
in the development
of anchor tourism
nodes along the
Zulu Heritage and
Cultural Route.

To facilitate the
development of at
least two anchor
tourism nodes along
the Zulu Heritage
and Cultural Route.

The Isibaya/Isibhubhu project
At the request of His Majesty, the two DEAT projects in
and around Enyokeni have been merged. Subsequently,
His Majesty recommended TKZN appointed as the
implementing agent for the project.
TKZN invited service providers to draw up a new
business plan for the Isibhubhu tourism project,
previously known as the Isibaya project, at the Enyokeni
Royal Palace, near Nongoma.
The eMakhosini project
Ongoing land tenure issues regarding the implementation
of the eMakhosini accommodation project led to its
cancellation.
King Shaka Heritage Route
The King Shaka Heritage Route project has been revived
and additional funding has been secured by the Ilembe
district municipality to implement the route.
TKZN serves on a steering committee and implemented
the signage requirements for the route. Identification and
implementation of the infrastructure and institutional
requirements for the King Shaka Route have commenced.

Level of success in
development of the
Township Tourism
Route.

Facilitate the
development of at
least one township
tourism route.

Development of the township tourism route
As part of its research, TKZN and SMMEs experienced
township tours in Soweto.
To develop township tourism further, it is necessary to
conduct a township tourism study with the aim of
recommending proposals for the development of new
products, or upgrading existing products.
To this end, market research will be undertaken by TKZN
to determine the demand for township tourism initiatives
and to develop appropriate routes.
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3.4 Tourism development continued
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT continued
Goal

Key performance
indicator
Facilitate the
implementation,
completion and
handover of tourism
development
projects where TKZN
is the implementing
agent.

Target

Performance results

Level of success in
implementing,
completing and
handover of tourism
development
projects.

KZN signage project
The KZN signage project is well underway with the
manufacture and erection of the signs for the Valley of a
Thousand Hills, Southern Explorer, King Shaka Route,
uKhahlamba Drakensberg and Mnweni Valley.
The designs for the Zulu Heritage Route and the
eMakhosini and Isibaya projects have been finalised and
approved by the relevant transport authorities and the
manufacturing and erection of the signs are underway.
To date R1 019 112 has been spent on 352 signs that
have created 2 316 temporary job-person days since
June 2006.
Lilani Phase 3 project
This project, approved by DEAT, is now is its third phase.
However, former TKZN board members were not happy
with the deliverable objectives and they requested that
they be changed.
CNN architects were appointed to revise the business
plan, which was completed in January 2007.
It is important to develop a balance of facilities to attract
the market associated with hot spring tourism. The
intention is to establish a health spa as opposed to a
campsite, which will add significant economic value.
Ngome game reserve project
In May 2006 the Wetlands Trust completed the business
plan for the completion of the project. According to its
recommendations, an amount of R7,6 million is needed
to complete phase one of the project.
The required amount has been raised from all provincial
departments.
The eLan Group, a leading property developer, has
partnered the Community Trust in the development and
marketing of the project.

To help assure the
health and security
of tourists.

Facilitate tourism
awareness
campaigns dealing
with health and
safety as well as
economic benefits in
conjunction with
public relations and
communications.

The number of
tourism awareness
campaigns
undertaken.

Health and safety
The Unit has undertaken the following initiatives:
• A provincial tourism safety plan was developed and
approved by the board in December 2006.
• A tourism awareness campaign was undertaken in
October 2006 to address issues of safety and security
to communities, in partnership with Uthukela district
municipality.
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To ensure that the organisation’s activities
are aligned with the strategy
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4. Human resource management
4.1 Introduction
A process to review and revise human resource-related policies was undertaken during the financial year under
review. As a result, the board approved the revised leave and acting policies during the year. There is an ongoing
process of developing new policies and reviewing existing policies to take into account changes in the labour
market.
The recruitment section was kept busy filling vacant positions within the shortest possible period. Proper
planning has ensured that posts do not remain vacant for a long period of time.
The organisation once again participated in the Best Company to Work For survey. Management and staff
representatives are currently addressing issues that came out of the survey.
On the labour relations side, there were two staff grievances, which were resolved, and one disciplinary matter
which resulted in a dismissal.

4.2 Objectives
•

To provide an enabling environment which ensures that the skills, knowledge and attributes of employees are
applied to ensure maximum benefit.

•

To provide a reliable support service to assist the business units in carrying out their strategic objectives in
line with statutory and/or regulatory requirements.

•

To ensure that the organisation’s activities are aligned with the strategy.

4.3 Performance measures
•

Maintaining programmes aimed at improving employee wellness.

•

The success in facilitating training in response to skills gaps identified during the skills assessment exercise
as well as the performance review processes.

•

Review and revise human resource-related policies.

•

Proper planning and recruitment to fill outstanding vacancies.

•

Minimising the incidents of labour relations disputes and promoting fair practices.

4.4 Employment and vacancies
4.4.1

Per job title designated

Position

Department

Date vacated

Date filled

Manager: Trade Marketing

Marketing

September 2005

August 2006

Executive Assistant to GM: Marketing

Marketing

Created position

April 2006

Destination Brand Manager

Marketing

November 2006

Not filled

Projects Coordinator: Trade Marketing Marketing

March 2007

Not filled

GM: Corporate Services

Corporate Services

May 2006

Account Administrator: Debtors

Corporate Services

December 2006

PR and Communications Coordinator

PR and Communications

May 2006

PR and Communications
Departmental Assistant

PR and Communications

Created position

CEO

CEO’s Office

June 2006

Not filled

Executive Assistant to CEO

CEO’s Office

July 2006

Not filled

Board and Committee Secretary

CEO’s Office

October 2006

Not filled

Information Officer (Gauteng)

Tourism Information Services

Created position

August 2006

Information Officer

Tourism Information Services

December 2006

Not filled

Researcher

Tourism Information Services

October 2006

January 2007
March 2007
October 2006
February 2007

March 2007
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4. Human resource management

continued

4.4 Employment and vacancies continued
4.4.2

Per department
Department

Vacancies

Employment

3
2
4
2
0
3

0
2
2
2
0
2

CEO’s office
Corporate Services
Marketing
PR and Communications
Tourism Development
Tourism Information Services

4.5 Personnel expenditure
Personnel expenditure total per department
Department

2006/7 (R)

Chief Executive Officer’s office
Marketing
PR and Communications
Research and Information Services
Tourism Development
Corporate Services

1 498 442
2 126 573
727 295
3 641 767
1 346 385
1 999 318

Total

11 339 780

4.6 Leave utilisation (days)
Type
Annual
Family
Study

April

May

June

July

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

66
4
5

66
8
0

44
0
6

38
1
0

27
1
7

85
1
5

44
6
38

46
1
20

246
0
3

287
0
12

44
2
2

32
1
0

4.7 Appointments and terminations
4.7.1

Appointments
African males
Senior management

1

African females
Skilled technical and academically qualified
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision-making

2
1
3

4.7.2

African males
Skilled technical and academically qualified

1

Terminations
African males
Senior management
Skilled technical and academically qualified

1
3
4

African females
Senior management
Skilled technical and academically qualified

1
2
3

Coloured females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist mid management
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4.8 HIV/AIDS policy implementation
TKZN has adopted an HIV policy as part of the overall Employee Assistance Programme. On 29 November 2006 TKZN
launched Wellness Day during which staff were encouraged to participate as the organisation created an awareness of
their well-being. Members of staff were screened regarding their cholesterol, glucose and blood pressure levels.
Voluntary counselling and testing (VCT) was also performed

4.9 Labour relations
4.9.1

Misconduct and disciplinary actions
Nature of disciplinary action

Number

Verbal warning
Written warning
Final written warning
Dismissal
4.9.2

1
1
0
1

Types of misconduct addressed in disciplinary action
Type of misconduct

Number

Failure to carry out lawful instructions
Gross dishonesty
Gross insubordination
Absenteeism
4.9.3

1
1
1
1

Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007
Nature of grievance
Unfair treatment
Performance assessment outcomes

4.10

Outcome
Resolved using RBO (Relation by Objective) exercise
Grievance was withdrawn by employee

Job evaluation
The following jobs were graded in 2006/2007 financial year
Job title
Financial Accountant
Project and management Accountant
Registrar: Tourism Services
PR and Communications Coordinator
Guest Relations Officer
Accounts Administrator – Creditors
Accounts Administrator – Debtors

Previous grade

New grade

8
8
9
10
11
12
12

7
7
8
9
9
10
10
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4. Human resource management
4.11

continued

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal staff complement as at 31 March 2007
African females
Senior management
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision-making
Unskilled and defined decision-making

2
5
13
2
1
23

African males
Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified
Unskilled and defined decision-making

1
2
2
14
1
20

White females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified

1
1
2

White males
Senior management
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

1
1
2

Indian females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

1
2
1
4

Indian males

0

Coloured females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

1
0
1
2

Coloured males
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Total number of staff
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Training plan (1 April 2006 – 31 March 2007)
Occupational
categories

People to be trained during
the current financial year

African Coloured Indian
White
Total
Status M F D M F D M F D M F D M F D

Current employees
(at this level)

Planned 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 2 0

Current employees
(earmarked for
accelerated development)

Planned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

External recruits
(incl.18.2 learners at this level)

Planned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Current employees
(at this level)

Planned 2 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 3 6 0

Current employees
(earmarked for
accelerated development)

Planned 1 3 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 4 0

External recruits
(incl.18.2 learners at this level)

Planned 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior officials,
managers

Professionals

Technicians and
associated professionals

Current employees
(at this level)

Planned 5 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 6 4 0

Current employees
(earmarked for
accelerated development)

Planned 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 2 0

External recruits
(incl.18.2 learners at this level)

Planned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Clerical and/or
administrative workers

Service and
sales workers

Current employees
(at this level)

Planned 2 11 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 13 0

Current employees
(earmarked for
accelerated development)

Planned 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 0

External recruits
(incl.18.2 learners at this level)

Planned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Current employees
(at this level)

Planned 7 2 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 7 5 0

Current employees
(earmarked for
accelerated development)

Planned 3 2 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3 4 0

External recruits
(incl.18.2 learners at this level)

Planned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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5. Annual financial statements
5.1 Statement of Responsibility
The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended, requires the Accounting Authority
to ensure that the public entity keeps full and proper records of the financial affairs of the public entity. It also
requires that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the public entity, its business, its
financial results, its performance against predetermined objectives and its financial position as at the end of each
financial year in terms of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and Generally Recognised Accounting
Practices (GRAP).
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (Authority) acknowledges that the annual financial statements are the
responsibility of the members of the Authority. The Auditor-General is responsible for independently auditing and
reporting on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with statements of GAAP and GRAP. These
annual financial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The members have reviewed the public entity’s budgets and cash flow forecasts for the year ended 31 March
2007. On the basis of this review, and in view of the current financial position as well as the existing borrowing
facilities, the members have every reason to believe, and the auditors concur, that the public entity will be a
going concern in the year ahead and have continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual
financial statements.
To enable the members to meet the above responsibilities, the board of the members sets standards and
implements systems of internal controls and risk management that are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatements and losses. The public entity maintains internal financial
controls to provide assurance regarding:
•

The safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition;

•

The maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication.

In the opinion of members, based on information available to date, the annual financial statements fairly present
the financial position of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority at 31 March 2007 and the results of its operations
and cash flow information for the year and that the Code of Corporate Governance has been adhered to.
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007, set out on pages 78 to103 were approved by
the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999), as amended and are signed on its behalf by:

N Khoza
Chief Executive Officer
31 August 2007

Dr SV Chonco
Chairperson: KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
31 August 2007
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5. Annual financial statements

continued

5.2 Corporate Governance Report
The Board of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (Authority) is responsible for the establishment of a risk management
approach, development of fraud prevention policies, effectiveness of internal audit and audit committee as well as other
governance structures. These include management processes to minimise conflict of interest, implementation of code of
conduct as well as safety, health and environmental issues facing the Authority.
On the other hand, management is responsible and accountable to the board for designing, implementing and
monitoring the processes outlined above and integrating them into the day-to-day activities of the Authority.
To this end, appropriate governance structures were set up to deal with these issues as set out in detail below.
Corporate Services Committee
This Committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the Chairperson nominated from the members of
the Board.
The primary functions of this Committee include reviewing and recommending to the Board the following:
•

Recommending budget allocations to corporate governance strategy and activities undertaken by the Authority;

•

Guiding and reviewing business plans submitted by Management pertaining to corporate services activities and the
entire organisation;

•

Recommending budget and business plan reviews for corporate services activities every three months;

•

Recommending to the Board policies pertaining to:

•

•

The Authority as an entity; and

•

The Authority’s input and view on policy matters, both provincially and nationally.

Making recommendations to the Board on any matter pertaining to good corporate governance, capacity building
and training within KwaZulu-Natal.

Audit Committee
This Committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the Chairperson nominated from the members of
the Board.
The primary functions of this committee include reviewing and recommending to the Board the following:
•

Annual financial statements with both management and external auditors prior to their approval by the Board;

•

Accounting policies adopted or any changes made or contemplated;

•

Effectiveness of the annual audit, ensuring emphasis is placed on areas where the Committee, Management or the
Auditors believe special attention is necessary;

•

Significant transactions which are not normal part of the Authority’s business;

•

Effectiveness of the internal audit function;

•

Coordination of audit approach between internal and external auditors;

•

Effectiveness of the systems of internal controls;

•

Recommending the quantum of the audit fees; and

•

Identifying steps to be taken in order to avoid problems encountered in the previous year, thereby reducing
unnecessary audit work.

Marketing and Tourism Development Committee
During the period under review, the Marketing and the Tourism Development Committees merged to form the Marketing
and Tourism Development Committee. This Committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the
Chairperson nominated from the members of the Board.
The primary functions of this Committee include reviewing and recommending to the Board the following:
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5.2 Corporate Governance Report continued
Marketing
• Overall marketing strategy, (including PR and Communications as well as Tourism Information and Research);
• Annual overall marketing budget;
• Progress in terms of implementation of the annual action plan;
• Relevant policies pertaining to:
• Brand management;
• Advertising and promotional campaigns;
• Events marketing and Sponsorship;
• Domestic and International marketing;
• Strategic Marketing tools;
• Public relations; and
• Tourism Information Services.
Tourism Development
• Recommending budget allocations to Tourism Development activities undertaken by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal;
• Guiding and reviewing business plans submitted by management pertaining to tourism development activities;
• Recommending budget and business plan reviews for development activities every three months;
• Recommending development policies pertaining to all functional activities of the Tourism Development Business
Unit; and
• Making recommendations to the Board on any matter pertaining to tourism development, within KwaZulu-Natal.
Compensation Committee
During the year under review, the Compensation Committee was formed. The primary function of this Committee is to
assist the Board in exercising its function of ensuring that affordable, fair and effective compensation practices are
implemented.
This committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the Chairperson nominated from the members of
the Board.
The mandate of the Compensation Committee is to:
• Determine the compensation of Executive Management;
• Review and approve general proposals for salary and wage adjustments;
• Review and approve proposals for the general adjustment of standard conditions of service including matters
relating to leave, housing, motor vehicles, bonuses, incentives, pension funds, provident funds, medical aid,
deferred compensation, share schemes and the like;
• Review, from time to time the compensation policies, practices and proposals to change such policies and practices
as well as to make recommendations in this regard to the Board;
• Determine and approve any criteria necessary to measure the performance of executive managers in discharging
their functions and responsibilities;
• Review (at least annually) and approve the terms and conditions of executive managers’ service agreements, taking
into account information from comparable companies;
• Review and approve any disclosures in the annual report or elsewhere in respect of compensation policies or
executives’ compensation; and
• Assess (at least annually) the performance of the Committee and Committee members.
The implementation and ongoing review of the Public Finance and Management Act (PFMA) and Treasury Regulations
related policies has continued during the year under review. The implementation of these policies continues to result in
significant improvements in financial management and human resource management with the Authority. The financial
reports and documentation required in terms of the PFMA as well as the Treasury regulations were prepared timeously.
The quarterly reports required in terms of the Memorandum of Agreement entered into between the Authority and the
Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism were submitted.
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continued

5.3 Report of the Audit Committee
Report of the Audit Committee required by Treasury Regulations 27.1.7 and 27.1.10 (b) and (c) issued in
terms of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999, as amended by Act 29 of 1999 (PFMA).
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2007.
Audit Committee members and attendance
The Audit Committee consists of members listed hereunder and meets four times per annum as per its approved terms of
reference. During the year under review five meetings were held.
Name of member

Number of meetings attended

Ms B Mnganga – Chairperson
Ms L Ngcobo – from May 2006
Ms N Khanyile – from December 2006
Mr Z Gwala – from December 2006
Dr S Chonco – until May 2006
Mr A Vels – until July 2006

5
5
1
1
2
1

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
The effectiveness of internal controls
The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and
working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the PFMA and the King II Report on Corporate Governance
requirements, internal audit provides the Audit Committee and the management with assurance that the internal controls
are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various reports of the internal
auditors, the audit report of the Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or material non-compliance with
prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. Accordingly, we can report that the systems of internal controls
for the period under review were effective and efficient.
Evaluation of annual financial statements
The Audit Committee has:
•

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report with the
Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority;

•

Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management letter and management’s response thereto;

•

Reviewed changes in accounting policies; and

•

Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The audit committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial statements and
is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General.

B Mnganga CA (SA)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31 August 2007
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5.4 Report of the Auditor-General to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on the
Financial Statements and Performance Information of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism
Authority for the year ended 31 March 2007
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2007, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 88 to 105.
Responsibility of the Accounting Authority for the Financial Statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP), including any
interpretations of such statements, issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with prescribed Statements of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board and in the manner
required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). This responsibility includes:
•

Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

•

Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies.

•

Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General
3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, read with section 4 of the
Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004), section 40(2) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1
of 1999) and section 41 of the World Heritage Convention Act, 1999 (Act No. 49 of 1999), my responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
4. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 645 and 647 of
2007, issued in Government Gazette No. 29919 of 25 May 2007. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
6. An audit also includes evaluating the:
•

Appropriateness of accounting policies used.

•

Reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management.

•

Overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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continued

5.4 Report of the Auditor-General to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on the
Financial Statements and Performance Information of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism
Authority for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
Basis of Accounting
8.

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority’s policy is to prepare financial statements in accordance with SA Statements
of GAAP with GRAP standards 1, 2 and 3 replacing the equivalent SA Statements of GAAP, as set out in
accounting policy 1 to the financial statements.

Opinion
9.

In my opinion these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority as at 31 March 2007, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with the basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury and in the manner
required by the PFMA.

OTHER MATTERS
Material non-compliance with applicable legislation
10.

11.

In terms of section 51(1) of the PFMA the accounting authority is responsible for the management, including the
safeguarding of the assets and for the management of revenue, expenditure and liabilities of the public entity. For
the year under review the following non-compliance was identified:
•

There is no documented fraud prevention plan to prevent and detect fraud and to mitigate specific fraud risks.

•

The internal audit charter does not cover the audit of performance information.

•

Declaration of interest by management is not updated annually.

•

The human resource strategic plan is not approved by the accounting authority.

•

An investment policy for short-term investments is not maintained.

Internal control
11.1

Control activity
In terms of the PFMA the accounting authority is required to ensure that an effective and efficient system
of internal control is in place and maintained. This would require that appropriate policies and
procedures be implemented. The absence of adequate such policies and procedures has resulted in the
entity not implementing sufficient controls. This is evidenced by the related matters reported on the fraud
prevention plan and on the investment policy.

11.2

Monitoring of controls
The monitoring of controls relating to the internal audit function and the declaration of interest by
management is not effective.
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5.4 Report of the Auditor-General to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on the
Financial Statements and Performance Information of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism
Authority for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES
Reporting on Performance Information
12.

I have audited the performance information as set out on pages (17) to (71).

Responsibilities of the Accounting Authority
13.

The accounting authority has additional responsibilities as required by section 55(2) (a) of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) to ensure that the annual report and audited financial statements fairly
present the performance against predetermined objectives of the public entity.

Responsibilities of the Auditor-General
14.

I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) read
with General Notice 646 of 2007, issued in Government Gazette No. 29919 of 25 May 2007.

15.

In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an audit nature to obtain sufficient
appropriate evidence about the performance information and related systems, processes and procedures. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment.

16.

I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the audit findings
reported below.

Audit Finding
17.

Lack of reporting on all pre-determined objectives in annual report
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority has not reported on all the pre-determined objectives as required by section
55(2) (a) of the PFMA.

18.

Measurable objectives are materially inconsistent between annual report, the strategic plan and the budget.
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority’s measurable objectives reported in the annual report are materially
inconsistent when compared with the predetermined objectives as per the strategic plan and the budget.
Furthermore, there were no approved policies and procedures in respect of Performance information.

APPRECIATION
19.

The assistance rendered by the staff of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority during the audit is sincerely
appreciated.

H van Zyl for Auditor-General
Pietermaritzburg
31 August 2007
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5.5 Accounting Authority’s report
Report by the Accounting Authority to the Executive Authority and the Provincial Legislature of the Republic of South Africa.
General review of the state of affairs
For the financial year 2006/7, the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (Authority) received a grant of R58 096 000
(2005/6: R52 186 000) from the Provincial Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism. A further amount of R2 074 577
(2005/6: R2 900 000) was received in the form of other income. Thus, the total income for the Authority was
R60 170 577 (2005/6: R55 086 000).
The net deficit for the financial year was R1 824 613 (net deficit in 2005/6: R3 972 000). The main reason for this deficit
is due to the budget for the financial year having been adjusted upwards so as to utilise the accumulated surpluses from
prior years. This has resulted in the reduction of the accumulated surpluses as at the end of the financial year to
R1 546 387 (2005/6: R3 371 000). The reasons for the accumulation of the surplus were documented and reported in
the previous financial years’ reports.
During the financial year under review, there were changes in the board and executive management level. Following the
resignation of some members of the board as well as vacant positions within the board, four new members were brought
on board in December 2006 to fill in the vacancies.
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) resigned as at the end of June 2006. The Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the
Authority has been acting in the position of CEO from 1 July 2006 and was formally appointed as CEO on 1 May 2007.
The General Manager: Corporate Services resigned as at the end of May 2006, as such the recruitment to fill the position
was undertaken during the year under review. The position has since been filled. The Authority’s annual action plan was,
to a large extent, implemented satisfactorily. Further details are contained below under the section dealing with
performance information.
Services rendered by the Authority
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, is a statutory body responsible for the
development, marketing and promotion of tourism in KwaZulu-Natal. It reports to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial
Legislature through the Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism. It was established in 1997 in accordance with the
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act No. 11 of 1996, as amended.
In terms of the regulations for the registration of tour guides as well as the regulations for the registration of tourism
accommodation establishments and related service providers, the Authority performed certain functions during the year.
These include the registration of tour guides, tourism accommodation establishments and the general Registrar
functions. The registration levies payable in this regard were approved by the then Minister responsible for tourism in the
province. The levies payable were not adjusted during the financial year under review.
Overall, during the financial year under review, the Authority engaged in various activities aimed at marketing and
promotion of the province as a leading tourist destination. The Authority also engaged in a number of public relations
initiatives and tourism development projects within the province.
Capacity constraints
As already indicated above, there were changes at the executive management and senior management levels. However,
the appointment of the COO as acting CEO whilst the recruitment process was being undertaken, ensured a smooth and
efficient running of the affairs of the Authority with little or no disruptions.
Despite the above, the planned activities and related outputs for 2006/7 were satisfactorily executed and achieved.
Utilisation of poverty alleviation funds
The entity received funds by way of conditional grants for special projects, including poverty relief projects. These funds
are mainly from the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) and are utilised as part of the Authority’s
tourism development initiatives. This is in line with the Authority having been appointed by DEAT as its implementing
agent in this regard.
The funds which were not utilised, mainly due to timing differences, were carried forward to a future period.
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Furthermore, a separate bank account is usually opened for each project.
For the year under review, there was significant progress achieved in dealing with challenges arising out of the
implementation of these projects. A number of the projects were completed and handed over to the intended
beneficiaries and/or recipients as well as back to DEAT (this is reported further under the Tourism Development
programme performance). The Authority also made endeavours to strengthen its relationship and involvement of the
district and local government in the implementation of the remaining projects.
Business address
Registered office:
Suite 303 Tourist Junction
160 Pine Street
Durban
4001

Postal address:
PO Box 2516
Durban
4000

Bankers:

First National Bank

External auditors:

Auditor-General

Internal auditors:

Internal Audit Unit – KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Treasury

Discontinued activities
No activities were discontinued during the period under review.
New or proposed activities
There were no new activities embarked upon during the period under review. Furthermore, there are no proposed
activities for the upcoming financial year.
Events after the reporting date
There were no material events that occurred after 31 March 2007.
Performance information
In terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, the Authority must develop an annual tourism promotion, marketing and
development action plan. This action plan must provide clear indications of goals and objectives for the planning period.
Such a plan was developed for the 2006/7 financial year. The progress reports were tabled at each board and the
Committees meetings of the Authority. Furthermore, the Authority reported to the Department of Arts, Culture and
Tourism on a quarterly basis on progress towards the achievement of the stated outputs and objectives in line with the
Memorandum of Agreement entered into between the two entities.
A detailed report on the activities of the Authority is included under a separate section of the annual report.
Approval
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007, set out on pages 78 to 103, were approved by the
Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as
amended and are signed on its behalf by:

N Khoza
Chief Executive Officer
31 August 2007

Dr SV Chonco
Chairperson: KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority
31 August 2007
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5.6 Statement of financial performance for the year ended 31 march 2007

Grants and transfers

Notes

2007
R’000

2006
R’000

1 and 2

60 170

55 086

60 170

55 086

Administrative expenses

3

2 196

2 428

Staff costs

4

14 213

14 883

Marketing expenses

5

39 302

36 134

6

7

Interest paid
Tourism development expenses

6

2 282

1 257

Other operating expenses

7

3 412

3 763

Depreciation

8

584

586

61 995

59 058

(1 825)

(3 972)

3 371

7 343

1 546

3 371

Net deficit for the year
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year
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5.7 Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2007
Notes

2007
R’000

2006
R’000

8

2 263

1 581

2 263

1 581

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Receivables

10

1 460

2 750

Cash and cash equivalents

11

20 888

20 046

22 348

22 796

24 611

24 377

9

1 546

3 371

Trade and other payables

13

22 349

19 286

Provisions

12

716

1 720

23 065

21 006

24 611

24 377

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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5.8 Statement of changes in net assets for the year ended 31 March 2007
Notes

2007
R’000

2006
R’000

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year

9

3 371

7 343

Net deficit for the year

9

(1 825)

(3 972)

1 546

3 371

3 371

7 343

(1 825)

(3 972)

1 546

3 371

Accumulated surplus

Balance at 31 March 2007
Total reserves
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Net deficit for the year
Balance at 31 March 2007
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5.9 Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2007
Notes
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Net cash utilised in investing activities
Interest received
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

14

2007
R’000

2006
R’000

656

5 277

662

5 284

(6)

(7)

(786)

(325)

471

605

(1 257)

(930)

842

4 952

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

20 046

15 094

Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year

20 888

20 046
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5.10 Accounting policies
1. Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP), Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the Public Finance
Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 as amended (PFMA).
Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise indicated, and
incorporate the principal accounting policies, set out below, which are consistent with those of previous years.
These policies comply with South African Statements of GAAP including any interpretations of such Statements
issued by the Accounting Practices Board, with the prescribed Standards of GRAP issued by the Accounting
Standards Board replacing equivalent GAAP statements as follows:
Standard of GRAP

Replaced statement of GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements

AC101:

Presentation of financial statements

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements

AC118:

Cash flow statements

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors

AC103:

Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors

The recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements do not differ or result in
material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial statements. The implementation of GRAP 1, 2
and 3 has resulted in the following significant changes in the presentation of the financial statements:
Terminology differences:
Standard of GRAP

Replaced statement of GAAP

Statement of financial performance
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in net assets
Reserves
Surplus/deficit for the period
Accumulated surplus/deficit
Contributions from owners
Contributions to owners
Reporting date

Income statement
Balance sheet
Statement of changes in equity
Equity
Profit/loss for the period
Retained earnings
Share capital
Dividends
Balance sheet date

1.1

Going Concern
The public entity will be a going concern in the year(s) ahead and as such, the Authority continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.

92

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal Annual Report 2006/7
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2. Currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand since that is the currency in which the majority of
the entity’s transactions are denominated.
3. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and these
benefits can be measured reliably.
Revenue arising from registration levies is recognised in full upon becoming a member or renewal of membership,
net of Value-Added Taxes. The licensing as well as acceptance of such registration by the Authority record
membership upon receipt of payment and submission of registration application forms. Membership is renewed
annually for tourism establishments and biennially for tour guides.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate over the period to maturity.
4. Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of
any applicable legislation, including:
• The PFMA, or
• Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.
All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which it is incurred.
5. Foreign currencies
Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s reporting currency (Rand) are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange ruling on the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses arising from the settlement of such transactions
are recognised in the income statement.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on
the balance sheet date. Unrealised differences on monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they occurred.
6. Retirement benefit costs
The entity operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are generally held in separate trusteeadministered funds. The plans are generally funded by payments from the entity.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to the income statement in the year to which
they relate.
7. Taxation
The entity operated on funds derived from Government Grants. In terms of a directive issued by the South African
Revenue Services the receipts and accruals of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority are exempt from income tax.
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5.10 Accounting policies continued
8. Unusual items
All items of income and expense arising in the ordinary course of business are taken into account in arriving at
income before taxation. Where items of income and expense are of such size, nature or incidence that their
disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the entity, they are separately disclosed and appropriate
explanations are provided.
9. Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, on the following bases:
Computer software
Office equipment:
Photographic
Dictaphones
Perforating equipment
Television
Surveyor’s equipment
Computer hardware
Office furniture
Office fittings and alterations
Videos

50%
16,6%
33,3%
16,6%
16,6%
20%
33,3%
16,6%
16,6%
50%

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.
The property, plant and equipment has been accounted for at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, and not at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses as required by the International Accounting Standards (IAS 16) ‘Property, plant and equipment’. The fair
value of property, plant and equipment has been assessed and it was found that the difference arising from
application of the IAS 16 statement is insignificant in the current year.
10.Intangible assets
Expenditure on trademarks and patents is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Internally generated intangible assets (Research and development costs)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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11.Impairment
At each balance sheet date, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under the standard.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that other standard.
12.Borrowings
In terms of section 66(3)(c) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, a public entity may only through the
Minister of Finance borrow money or, in the case of the issue of a guarantee, indemnity or security, only through
the Minister of Labour, acting with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance.
In terms of section 32.1.1 of the Treasury Regulations public entity may borrow money for bridging purposes with
the approval of the Minister of Finance, subject to certain conditions.
13.Leasing
Finance leases as per the Treasury Regulations refers to a contract that transfers the risks, rewards, rights and
obligations incident to ownership to the lessee and is recorded as a purchase of equipment by means of long-term
borrowing.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The entity as a lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The entity as a lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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14.Financial instruments
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the entity’s balance sheet when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets
The entity’s principle financial assets are trade receivable and cash and cash equivalents.
• Trade receivables
Trade receivables are stated at their nominal value, as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.
• Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at nominal value, which approximate their fair value.
Financial liabilities
The entity’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.
• Trade payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their nominal value.
15.Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that
this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably.
16.Government grants
Government grants are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the public entity
and these benefits can be measured reliably. The grant is recognised to the extent that there are no further
obligations arising from the receipt of the grant.
17.Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year.
18.Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, short-term investments with financial institutions and the amount
deposited with financial institutions as part of the entity’s current account.
Funds under administration in respect of special projects are deposited with financial institutions and are
accounted for as such.
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at nominal value.
19.Project funds
The entity receives funds by way of conditional grants for special projects, including poverty relief projects. Funds
that are not utilised, mainly due to timing differences, are carried forward to a future period. Expenditure incurred
on these funds is accounted for on a cash basis. Furthermore, a separate bank account is usually opened for each
project.
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5.11 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007
2007
R’000

2006
R’000

58 096

52 186

Commission on poverty relief projects
Interest income
Sundry income
Registration levies

112
471
1 136
355

82
605
1 986
227

Total

2 074

2 900

1. Grants and transfers
Provincial Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism (DACT)
2. Other income

3. Administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Audit fees – current year provision
Audit fees – under/(overprovision) prior year
Audit fees – other services
Travel and subsistence
Rentals in respect of operating leases

241
(23)

378
369

–
(23)
–

270
(4)
103

402
1 256

434
1 040

Buildings
Plant, machinery and equipment

1 057
199

829
211

Directors’ emoluments
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)

114
206

182
25

2 196

2 428

Basic salaries
Temporary
Defined provident fund contribution plan expenses

12 652
298
1 263

13 046
489
1 348

Total

14 213

14 883

54

56

Brand roll-out
Aviation and charters
Marketing activities
Image building
Research and information services

10
–
27 813
6 935
4 544

421
8 932
19 627
4 052
3 102

Total

39 302

36 134

Destination development
Community-based tourism
Tourism investment promotion
Small business support and tourism awareness programmes

420
208
1 537
117

120
134
343
660

Total

2 282

1 257

Total
4. Staff costs

Total number of employees as at 31 March
5. Marketing expenses

6. Tourism development expenses
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5.11 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
2007
R’000

2006
R’000

514
111
37
53

338
162
146
48

53

48

Entertainment expenses
Other

23
2 674

39
3 030

Total

3 412

3 763

7. Other operating expenses
Staff training and development
Consultants, contractors and special services
Legal fees
Maintenance, repairs and running costs
Property and buildings

8. Property, plant and equipment
Net
Gross carrying value
Accumulated depreciation
carrying
Opening Additions Disposal Closing Opening Depreciation Disposal Closing
value
2007
Office furniture
Office equipment
Office fittings and alterations
Computer software
Computer hardware
Library acquisitions
Work-in-progress:
Office fittings and alterations
Total
2006
Office furniture
Office equipment
Office fittings and alterations
Computer software
Computer hardware
Library acquisitions
Work-in-progress:
Office fittings and alterations
Total

758
222
1 122
386
2 239
15
525

588
109
944
18
123
–
(525)

5 267 1 257
705
206
1 121
367
2 141
15

53
20
1
19
312
–

–

525

4 555

930

– 1 346
589
– 331
192
– 2 066
710
– 404
369
– 2 362 1 802
–
15
15
–

–

74
24
165
20
301
–

–

–

– 6 524 3 677

584

–
758
(4) 222
– 1 122
–
386
(214) 2 239
–
15

516
183
547
328
1 729
15

73
13
163
41
296
–

525

–

–

(218) 5 267

3 318

586

–

– 663
683
– 216
115
– 875 1 191
– 389
15
– 2 103
259
–
15
–
–

–

–

– 4 261 2 263
–
589
(4) 192
–
710
–
369
(223) 1 802
–
15
–

169
30
412
17
437
–

–

525

(227) 3 677

1 590

9. Reserves

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Net deficit for the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year

2007
R’000

2006
R’000

3 371
(1 825)

7 343
(3 972)

1 546

3 371

The accumulated surplus was not budgeted for and will be utilised for the purpose it was intended for.
The Authority has requested consent from the Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism to carry forward this
accumulated surplus to future years.
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2007
R’000

2006
R’000

10.Receivables
Receivables
Less: Provision for impairment

305
(150)

385
(132)

155

253

SARS – VAT
SARS – PAYE
Staff advances
Prepayments
Rental deposits

1 014
109
38
36
108

2 154
–
10
225
108

Total

1 460

2 750

Cash at bank
Cash on hand
Short-term investments
Project funds

16 558
5
317
4 008

2 811
5
12 591
4 639

Total

20 888

20 046

Total

The provision for impairment has been determined by reference to the
Authority’s policy of management of debt, past default experience and
the current economic environment.
The Authority considers that the carrying amount of receivables
approximates to their fair value.

11.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered
banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk.
The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.
12.Provisions
Audit fee
provision

Leave pay
provision

Annual Performance
bonus
bonus
provision
provision

Total

2007
Opening balance 1 April 2006
Utilisation of provision during the year
Provisions made during the year

588
–
51

71
–
6

–

639

77

–

716

Opening balance 1 April 2005
Utilisation of provision during the year
Provisions made during the year

250
–
20

573
–
15

68
–
3

–
–
791

891
–
829

Closing balance 31 March 2006

270

588

71

791

1 720

Closing balance 31 March 2007

270
(270)
–

791
(791)
–

1 720
(1 061)
57

2006

The leave pay and bonus provision relates to the Authority’s estimated liabilities arising as a result of services
rendered by employees.
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5.11 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
2007
R’000

2006
R’000

Trade payables
SARS – PAYE
Accruals
Lease rental deposits
Project funds

4 297
–
437
5
17 610

7 259
415
553
5
11 054

Total

22 349

19 286

Annexure A
Made up as follows:
Project funds accounts
Cash in the Authority’s bank accounts

4 008
13 602

4 639
6 415

Total

17 610

11 054

Net deficit for the year
Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Interest received
Interest paid

(1 825)

(3 972)

584
(471)
6

586
(605)
7

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

(1 706)

(3 984)

Working capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in receivables
(Decrease)/increase in payables
Increase/(decrease) in projects funds

1 290
(5 478)
6 556

1 145
4 713
3 410

13.Trade and other payables

The Authority consider that the carrying amount of trade and other
payables approximates to their fair value.
13.1 Project funds

14.Cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations
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5.11 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
15.Employee benefits
15.1 Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the income statement in the reporting period when
the payment is made. Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation is deferred until they can be reliably measured and then expensed. Details of these benefit and
potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements and are not recognised in the income statement.
15.2

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed as and when the payment is made.

15.3 Retirement benefits
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority contributes to the Old Mutual Orion Provident Fund. Membership is
compulsory for all permanent employees. The fund is a Defined Contribution Fund. The Authority
contributes 15% of the pensionable remuneration. The employees do not contribute to this fund.
The Authority’s contribution to the fund were R1 263 210 (2006: R1 347 951). None of the members of the
Board are members of the Fund.
15.4 Medical benefits
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority provides medical benefits for its employees through Discovery Health
Benefit Plans. These benefits are funded by employee contributions since the Authority works on the total
cost of employment. No provision is made for medical benefits in the financial statements of the Authority.
16.Board members’ emoluments and executive management remuneration
Board members’ emoluments in rands

Fees for services

Other

Total

28 800.00
8 250.00
1 950.00
14 400.00
1 500.00
2 250.00
9 750.00
5 550.00
750.00
11 250.00

6 144.34
3 422.66
–
147.00
230.00
1 074.00
–
–
652.00
3 023.85

34 944.34
11 672.66
1 950.00
14 547.00
1 730.00
3 324.00
9 750.00
5 550.00
1 402.00
14 273.85

3 750.00
2 250.00
8 550.00

59.00
–
–

3 809.00
2 250.00
8 550.00

99 000.00

14 752.85

113 752.85

Dr S Chonco (Chairperson of the board)
Ms B Bhoola
Mr A Gilbert
Dr T Goba
Ms N Khanyile
Ms S Luzipo
Ms S Maharaj
Ms B Mnganga CA (SA)
Mr S Mshengu
Mr K Naidoo
Ms L Ngcobo CA (SA) (independent member
of the Audit Committee only)
Mr P Rutsch
Mr A Vels
Total
Executive management
remuneration in rands

Basic salary

PerformanceOther
related pay

Provident
fund and
Total
medical aid remuneration

Chief Executive Officer
(until June 2006)
Chief Operating Officer
(acting as CEO from
July 2006 to March 2007)

184 299.93

–

144 620.00

32 647.62

361 567.55

620 571.92

111 246.14

–

83 506.13

815 324.19

Total

804 871.85

111 246.14

144 620.00

116 153.75 1 176 891.74
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2007
R’000

2006
R’000

Up to one year
One to five years

1 356 558
732 351

1 274 945
531 567

Total

2 088 909

1 806 512

Up to one year
One to five years (see note 20 on subsequent events)

75 021
–

102 480
51 240

Total

75 021

153 720

Up to one year
One to five years

299 144
27 434

160 501
58 395

Total

326 578

218 896

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

115 559

495 005

Total

115 559

495 005

Internally generated funds

115 559

495 005

Total

115 559

495 005

17.Contingent liabilities
The Authority had no known contingent liabilities at the date of
reporting.
18.Operating lease agreements
Authority as lessee
At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases which falls due as follows:

At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding lease
commitments in respect of office equipment which falls due as follows:

All the above lease agreements in respect of the equipment are not
renewable at the end of the lease term and the Authority does not
have the option to acquire the equipment. These lease agreements
do not impose any restrictions.
Authority as lessor
At the balance sheet date the Authority had contracted with
sub-tenants for the following minimum future lease payments:

19.Capital commitments
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment:

The capital expenditure is to be funded as follows:
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5.11 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
20.Subsequent events
The Authority entered into a three-year lease agreement with Nashua Durban for office automation, specifically,
photocopier machines.
The agreement was signed on 25 May 2007.
21.Related party transactions
There were no related party transactions during the year under review.
22.Financial instruments
In the course of the Authority’s business operations it is exposed to currency, credit and liquidity risk. The Authority
has developed a comprehensive risk management process to monitor and control these risks. The risk management
process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the relevant heading below.
Currency risk
The Authority undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations. However, due to the relatively small number of transaction, the Authority does not take any forward
foreign exchange contracts. Financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies as at year-end
are translated using the spot rate at year end. The volume of foreign transactions is small and is not expected to
have a material effect on the annual financial statements.
Credit risk
Financial assets, which potentially subject the Authority to the risk of non-performance by counterparties and
thereby subject the Authority to concentrations of credit risk, consists mainly of cash and cash equivalent and trade
receivables.
The Authority limits its treasury counterparty exposure by only dealing with well-established financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. The Authority does not expect any treasury
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations, given their high credit rating.
Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of debtors comprising the Authority’s
debtors base and their dispersion across different industries and geographical areas. The Authority does not have
any significant exposure to any individual debtor or counterparty. Accordingly, the Authority does not consider
there to be any significant concentration of credit risk, which had not been adequately provided for. Trade
receivables are presented net of the allowance for impairment.
Liquidity risk
The Authority manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual
versus forecasted cash flows. Adequate reserves and liquid resources facilities are also maintained.
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5. Annual financial statements

continued

5.11 Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 continued
22.Financial instruments continued
Maturity profile
The maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities at balance sheet date are as follows:
One year or less
R’000

Total
R’000

Year ended 31 March 2007
Assets
Cash
Receivables

19 907
1 460

19 907
1 460

Total financial assets

21 367

21 367

Liabilities
Trade and other payables

22 084

22 084

22 084

22 084

(717)

(717)

100,0

100,0

Total financial liabilities
Percentages (%)
Fair values

The Authority’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade
payables.
No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured for
all financial assets and that are available for sale or held for trading.
The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of financial instrument:
Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity
of this financial asset.
Trade receivables
The carrying amount of trade receivables, net of provision for impairment, approximates fair value due to the
relatively short-term maturity of this financial asset.
Trade payables
The carrying amount of trade payables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of this
financial liability.
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5.12 Accumulated project funds as at 31 March 2007 annexure

Project name

Accumulated year
2006
R’000

Anglo Boers
55 282
CEO’s Projects
88 882
Community Tourism
1 283 330
Greater St Lucia Wetland Park
554 320
St Lucia WP Heritage Route 1
696 709
Inanda Heritage Route
(45 690)
Inanda Heritage Route 2
210 892
Isithumba Adventure Tourism
9 600
Lilani Hot Springs
(14 515)
Ngome Game Reserve
196 685
Nowergian Heritage Route
7 538
Capacity Building and Training
69 336
St Lucia Heritage Route
256 843
St Lucia Mkhuze Gate
(63 755)
St Lucia Repair and Maintenance
7 904
Aviation and Charters
4 457 222
Brand Roll-out and
Merchandising Programme
652 854
Lilani Phase 2
406 336
Inanda Phase 2
236 544
St Lucia Living Treasures
22 763
Umgababa
470 124
King Shaka Route
13 523
Execution – KwaQiko
36 790
Siyabonga Craft Market
(1 028 761)
eMakhosini
721 784
Ingwe Cape Line
(597 872)
Zululand Economic Initiative
18 343
Nibela
(7 050)
Muden
425 964
GSWP Phase 2
(60 935)
CETA Learnership Programme
(Lilani)
(4 025)
Inanda Phase 2 DoW (Chapel)
347 239
Lilani Phase 3
223 165
Tourism KZN Signage
769 470
Kwanobamba Tourism
637 312
Ngome
–
Total

11 054 153

Interest
received
R’000

Other
income
R’000

Funding
Actual
received expenditure
R’000
R’000

–
–
–
357
361
–
429
–
–
2 219
235
2 629
1 158
54
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
7 337
5 661
325
21 328
499
1 662
1 117
32 050
–
335
202
29 776
935

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
263 729
–
182 467
–
23 088
–
(754)
–
6 794
–
3 471
– (1 040 238)
–
21 744
–
(597 872)
–
18 678
–
(6 848)
–
(231 516)
–
(60 000)

Accumulated year
Transfers
2007
R’000
R’000

–
–
55 282
9 750
–
79 132
2 901 556 2 841 284 1 223 058
554 677
–
–
697 070
–
–
(45 690)
–
–
202 276
–
9 044
9 600
–
–
(14 515)
–
–
177 524
–
21 380
3 767
–
4 006
18 859
–
53 105
258 001
–
–
(63 700)
–
–
7 904
–
–
–
– 4 457 222
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

652 854
149 944
59 738
–
492 206
7 228
34 981
12 594
732 089
–
–
–
687 256
–

–
–
19 178
–
10 829
–
25 414
–
28 838
–
– 7 125 000

–
–
–
642 960
–
–

(4 025)
(76 153)
8 764
1 016 574
551
–

–
–
–
442 570
–
225 231
–
421 270
–
665 599
– 7 125 000

192 927 7 125 000

642 960

4 245 533

2 841 284 17 610 791
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Definitions
ACSA
ASGISA
BBC
BEE
BT
CEO
COO
CRM
CT
DACT
DEAT
DIA
DMO
DTI
ETEYA
FDI
FIFA
GAAP
GCSA
GP
GRAP
IAS
ICC
ICCA
IOCTA
ITB
JIPSA
JMA
KZN
MEC
MICE
MOU
PFMA
PR
SAA
SABC
SADC
SAT
SMME
TEP
TGCSA
THETA
TIKZN
TIS
TKZN
TRM
UNWTO
US
USP
V&A
WTM
WTO
WWW
YMCA

Airports Company of South Africa
Accelerated Growth Initiative of South Africa
British Broadcasting Corporation
Black Economic Empowerment
Business Tourism
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Operating Officer
Customer Relationship Management
Cape Town
Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism
Department of Environment Affairs and Tourism
Durban International Airport
Destination Management Organisation
Department of Trade and Industry
Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year Award
Formerly Disadvantaged Individuals
Federation Internationale de Football Association
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
Grading Council of South Africa
Gauteng Province
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
International Accounting Standards
International Convention Centre
International Congress and Convention Association
Indian Ocean Cruise Tourism Association
Internationale Tourismus Börse, Berlin
Joint Initiative on Priority Skills Acquisition
Joint Marketing Agreement
KwaZulu-Natal
Member of the Executive Council
Meetings, Incentives, Conferences and Exhibitions
Memorandum of Understanding
Public Finance Management Act
Public Relations
South African Airways
South African Broadcasting Corporation
Southern African Development Community
South African Tourism
Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises
Tourism Enterprise Program
Tourism Grading Council of South Africa
Tourism and Hospitality Education Training Authority
Trade and Investment KwaZulu-Natal
Tourism Information Services
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
Technical Relationship Management
United Nations World Tourism Organisation
United States
Unique Selling Point
Victoria and Albert Waterfront, Cape Town
World Travel Market
World Tourism Organisation
What Where and When magazine
Young Men’s Christian Association
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Contact details
BATTLEFIELDS
Vryheid Information
60 Market Street, Vryheid

034 982 2133

MIDLANDS
Nottingham Road Tourism
The Gowrie Post Office Building, Nottingham Road

Tourism Newcastle
Town Hall, Scott Street, Newcastle

034 315 3318

Kamberg Valley Tourism
Kamberg Valley

083 288 6558

Battlefields Route
Vryheid

082 802 1643

The Amble
Peatties Lakeside Resort, Cramond

033 569 0010

036 637 2992

Richmond KZN Tourism
70 Shepstone Street, Richmond

033 212 2476

Ladysmith Tourism
Siege Museum, 151 Murchison Street, Ladysmith

036 352 6253

Boston Bulwer Beat
Boston

033 997 1808

Umtshezi Tourism Information
Old Civic Building, Upper Harding Street, Estcourt

033 413 9124

Msinga Tourism Information
Shop 18 – 20 Ithala Shopping Centre, Tugela Ferry

033 493 0761

Greytown Tourism
41 Bell Street, Greytown
Midlands Meander Association
Midmar Dam Nature Reserve

033 330 8195

Tourism Dundee
Civic Gardens, Victoria Street, Dundee

034 212 2121

Howick Tourism
4 Fort, Falls View Road, Howick

033 330 5305

Pietermaritzburg Tourism
Publicity House, 177 Commercial Road, Pietermaritzburg

033 345 1348

CAPE TOWN
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
021 405 4540
Gateway Tourism Centre, Clock Tower Precinct, V&A Waterfront
DRAKENSBERG
Montrose Travel Centre
Montrose Shell Garage, District of Harrismith

058 672 1044

NORTH COAST
Sangweni Tourism Centre
Corner Ballito and Link Road, Ballito
Dolphin Coast Tourism
Corner Ballito and Link Road, Ballito

033 266 6308

032 946 1256
032 946 1997

Explore EG
Mount Currie Inn Complex, Kokstad

039 727 4444

Major Adventures Information Centre
Underberg Hotel, Main Street, Underberg

033 701 1628

SOUTH COAST
Tourism Umdoni
Scottburgh

039 315 5168

Southern Berg Escape
1 Clock Tower Centre, Main Road, Underberg

033 701 1471

South Coast Tourism
Shelly Centre, Marine Drive, Shelly Beach

039 316 8221

Ukhahlamba/Drakensberg Tourism
Shop 5, Tugela Square, Kingsway Street, Bergville

036 448 1244

Southern Explorer
Bend Farm, Old National Road, Ramsgate
Ezinqoleni Tourism Association
Oribi Road, Port Shepstone

039 687 7561

Southern Midlands Tourism Association
Craigeburn Farm, Ixopo

039 834 2313

Hibiscus Coast Tourism
Port Shepstone Lighthouse, Port Shepstone

039 682 2455

Drakensberg Tourism Association
Geluksberg, Bergville

036 448 1557

Hibiscus Coast Tourism
Southbroom

039 316 6139

Hibiscus Coast Tourism
R61, Old National Road, Port Edward

039 311 1211

Hibiscus Coast Tourism, Head Office
16 Bisset Street, Port Shepstone

039 682 7944

Hibiscus Coast Tourism
Baracuda Boulevard, Hibberdene

039 699 3203
039 312 2322

DURBAN
Thousand Hills Tourism
47 Old Main Road, Botha’s Hill

031 777 1874

039 976 1364

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
Ground Floor, Tourist Junction, 160 Pine Street

031 366 7500

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
Domestic Arrivals, Durban International Airport

031 408 1000

Hibiscus Coast Tourism
1 Panorama Parade, Margate

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal
Shop IA, Ushaka Marine World, Bell Street

031 337 8099

Amanzimtoti Tourism Association
95 Beach Road, Amanzimtoti

031 903 7498

ZULULAND
Umhlathuze Tourism
Richards Bay Civic Centre, 5 Mark Street, Richards Bay

Cato Manor Tourism
750 Francois Road, Cato Manor

031 261 8657

Umhlanga Tourism
15 Chartwell Drive, Umhlanga Rocks
Durban Africa
First Floor, Tourist Junction, 160 Pine Street
ELEPHANT COAST
Jozini Tourism and Development Association
128 Main Street, Eshowe

035 907 5018

Melmoth Publicity
21 Reinhold Street, Melmoth

035 450 7572

Esikhawini Tourism Office
Umdlebetshona Street, Esikhawini

082 952 4379

031 561 4257

Paulpietersburg Tourism
29 High Street, Paulpietersburg

034 995 1650

031 304 4934

Pongola Information Office
Arts and Crafts Centre, Penguin Drive, Pongola

034 413 1144

Umlalazi Tourism
Hutchinson Street, Eshowe

035 473 3474

Zululand Regional Tourism Office
Uthungulu House, Richards Bay

035 799 2614

Nongoma Tourism
Lot 103, Main Street, Nongoma

035 831 7514

Zululand Birding Route
Imvubu Lodge, Meerensee, Richards Bay

035 753 5644

035 474 5181

Elephant Coast/Hluhluwe Tourism Association
Engen Garage, Main Road, Hluhluwe

035 562 0353

Mkuze Information Centre
King Fisher Road, Mkuze

035 573 1328
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